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Dear Sirs

Old Mutual plc — File No. 82-4974

S
In accordance with the exemption of Old Mutual plc (“OM plc”) pursuant to&iﬂ\e}z\%‘g/;/«\

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 under the above file reference 1y bér,/1 am
enclosing herewith copies of the following material press releases or other mategial public -

documents issued by OM plc or its subsidiaries since our letter to the SEC dated 19 December
2002:

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 15 January 2003 confirming the completion of the sale
of Old Mutual Securities to Secure Trusting Banking Group plc;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 17 January 2003 of the number of total shares in issue in
the Company at 31 December 2002;

¢ OM plc announcement dated 20 January 2003 of adoption of achieved profit reporting for
supplementary reporting in the 2002 preliminary results;

¢ Announcement dated 28 January 2003 of Old Mutual’s US Asset Management’s results
for the year ended 31 December 2002;

¢ Announcement of Mutual & Federal’s results for the year ended 31 December 2002 issued
on 11 February 2003;

¢ Release by OM plc dated 13 February 2003 relating to Nedcor’s results for the twelve
months ended 31 December 2002;

¢ Announcement dated 24 February 2003 of OM plc’s results for the twelve months ended
31 December 2002;

¢ OM plc announcement dated 6 March 2003 regarding a proposed placing of OM plc new
ordinary shares;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 13 March 2003 relating to the Zimbabwe currency
equivalent of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2002;

¢ OM ple’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2002;

¢ Nedcor’s Annual Report and Accounts for 2002; L/% 4
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¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 3 April 2003 that Barclays plc holds 4% of the ordinary

10p shares in OM plc;
¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 4 April 2003 of the currency conversion rates for the
final dividend of 2002,

Yours faithfully

Wl

M C Murray
Group Company Secretary

0Old Mutual plc



OLD MUTUAL PLC

Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December 2002
Currency Conversion

In the preliminary announcement by Old Mutual plc of its results for the year ended
31 December 2002 published on 24 February 2003, the company announced a
recommended final dividend of 3.1p per share or its equivalent in other currencies of
payment using the exchange rates prevailing on 3 April 2003. On 13 March 2003, Old
Mutual announced it would apply a Zimbabwe dollar/sterling exchange rate
determined by Zimbabwe Statutory Instrument 83A of 2003 in calculating the
dividend to be paid to shareholders on the Zimbabwe branch register.

The local currency equivalents of the proposed dividend have now been established
and are as follows:

South Africa 38.33 South African cents per share
Malawi 4.4157 Malawi Kwacha per share
Namibia 38.33 Namibian cents per share
Zimbabwe 40.1603 Zimbabwean dollars per share

Subject to being approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 16 May
2003, the final dividend will be paid on 30 May 2003.

The record date for this dividend payment is Tuesday, 22 April 2003 for all the
exchanges where Old Mutual shares are listed. The ex-dividend date on the London
Stock Exchange is the opening of business on Wednesday, 16 April 2003.

In accordance with the settlement procedures of STRATE, Old Mutual has
determined the last day for trading to participate in the final dividend to be Friday, 11
April 2003 for shares traded through the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa. The
ex-dividend date on the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa and also on the
Malawi, Namibian and Zimbabwe Stock Exchanges will be the opening of business
on Monday, 14 April 2003.

4 April 2003



ENQUIRIES:

Old Mutual ple, London
James Poole

Transfer Secretaries / Registrars
Computershare Investor Services

Bristol call centre:

Johannesburg call centre:

Nico Corporate Finance
Malawi call centre:

Transfer Secretaries (Pty) Limited
Namibian call centre:

Corpserve (Private) Limited
Zimbabwe call centre:

Tel: + 44 20 7569 0100

Tel: +44 870 702 0001
Tel: +27 11 370 7700

Tel: + 265 623 856

Tel: + 264 61 227647

Tel: +263 912 34621-5



OLD MUTUAL PLC
ISIN CODE: GB0007389926
JSE SHARE CODE: OML
NSX SHARE CODE: OLM
ISSUER CODE: OLOML

Share interests

Old Mutual plc has been informed, by a letter dated 31 March 2003 received today,
that the notifiable interest, for the purposes of Part VI of the Companies Act 1985, of
Barclays PLC in the ordinary shares of 10p each in Old Mutual plc has increased to

4.00%. .

The shares are held through the following entities:

‘ Holding
Barclays Global Investors Japan Investment Trust 103,477
Barclays Global Fund Advisors 382,375
Barclays Global Investors Australia Ltd 540,311
Barclays Capital Securities Ltd 20,144,598
Barclays Global Investors Ltd 100,590,895
Barclays Global Investors Japan Trust & Banking 935,284
Barclays Nikko Global Investors Ltd 374,633
Barclays Global Investors, N.A. 18,704,744
Barclays Life Assurance Co Ltd 11,635,444
Total Holding 153,411,761
3 April 2003

Enquiries:

James Poole, Director Corporate Affairs

(44) (0)20 7569 0100



OLD MUTUAL PLC
Mutual & Federal Insurance Company Limited

Amendment to Reviewed Financial Results announcement

Old Mutual plc (“Old Mutual”) draws attention to today’s announcement by Mutual
& Federal Insurance Company Limited ("Mutual & Federal"), the South African
general insurance group in which Old Mutual plc (“Old Mutual”) has a 51% interest,
detailing the amendment to their reviewed Financial Results announcement.

The full text of the Mutual & Federal announcement is available on SENS, the JSE
Securities Exchange News Service and on Old Mutual's website,
www.oldmutual.com. A paper copy of the full Mutual & Federal announcement is
available from Investor Relations, Old Mutual Plc, 3 Floor, 57 Berkeley Square,
London W1J 6ER.

14 March 2003

ENQUIRIES:

Old Mutual ple, London Tel: + 44 20 7569 0100
James Poole, Director of Investor Relations

Mutual & Federal Insurance Company Ltd Tel: +27 11 374 2261
Peter Bezuidenhout,

Executive General Manager



MUTUAL & FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Amendment to Reviewed Financial Results announcement

Attention is drawn to an announcement dated 11 February 2003 of reviewed financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2002.

Subsequent to this announcement, a decision was taken to change the accounting policy
regarding the treatment of Secondary Tax on Companies (“STC”) for purposes of the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2002. Previously STC was recognised
directly in equity through the statement of changes in equity. STC will now be treated as tax
on income and disclosed as part of the taxation charge in the income statement. This is
consistent with the revised AC102 — Income Taxes.

The impact of this change on basic and headline earnings as presented in the results
announcement are as follows:

31 Dec 02 31 Dec 01

R’m R’m
Net (loss)/income for the year
- As stated in the preliminary results announcement (100) 741
- Asit will be stated in the annual financial statements (110) 666
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (cents)
- Asstated in the preliminary results announcement “n 307
- Asitwill be stated in the annual financial statements 45) 276
Headline (loss)/earnings for the year
- As stated in the preliminary results announcement (79) 759
- Asitwill be stated in the annual financial statements &9 684
Headline (loss)/earnings per share (cents)
- Asstated in the preliminary results announcement (33) 314
- As it will be stated in the annual financial statements 37 283

On behalf of the Board

KTM Saggers (Chairman) B Campbell (Managing Director)



OLD MUTUAL PLC
ISIN CODE: GB0007389926
JSE SHARE CODE: OML
NSX SHARE CODE: OLM
ISSUER CODE: OLOML

Zimbabwe Currency Equivalent of Final Dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2002

On 24 February 2003, the Directors of Old Mutual plc announced that they were
recommending a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2002 of 3.1p per share
(making a total of 4.8p for the year).

As stated in that announcement, the local currency equivalents of the proposed dividend
for shareholders on the South African, Malawi and Zimbabwe branch registers and the
Namibian section of the principal register will be determined using the exchange rates
prevailing on Thursday, 3 April 2003 and will be announced by the Company on Friday,
4 April 2003.

Certain shareholders on the Zimbabwe branch register have approached Old Mutual plc
for clarification on the likely rate of exchange to be applied in Zimbabwe, following the
gazetting of Zimbabwe Statutory Instrument 83A of 2003 on 27 February 2003
(“Statutory Instrument 83A”). The official exchange rate was used to determine the
Zimbabwe dollar equivalent of previous dividends paid by Old Mutual plec.

Statutory Instrument 83 A provides that a rate of Z$824 to the United States dollar should
be used for all transactions other than those where the State is the buyer or seller of
foreign currency. Old Mutual plc therefore intends, subject to the provisions of Statutory
Instrument 83A remaining in force on 3 April 2003, to apply a Zimbabwe dollar/sterling
exchange rate based on Z$824 per United States dollar in calculating the dividend to be
paid to shareholders on the Zimbabwe branch register.

The final dividend is subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting of Old Mutual
plc, which is to be held in London on Wednesday, 16 May 2003. Subject to being so
approved, the final dividend will be paid on Friday, 30 May 2003.

13 March 2003
Enquiries:
Old Mutual plc, London Tel: + 44 20 7569 0100
James Poole, Director of Investor Relations
Old Mutual Zimbabwe ‘ Tel: +263 4 308400
Graham Hollick
College Hill London Tel: + 44 20 7457 2020

Tony Friend



NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO US PERSONS.

This announcement is not an offer of the Old Mutual plc shares (the “ordinary
shares™) for sale into the United States. The ordinary shares have not been and will
not be registered under the US Securities Act of 1933 and may not be offered or sold
in the United States unless they are registered or exempt from registration. There will
be no public offer of ordinary shares into the United States. :

OLD MUTUAL PLC
Proposed placing of new ordinary shares to raise approximately £36 million

Old Mutual ple (“Old Mutual”) today announces a placing (the “Placing”) of new
ordinary shares to be effected subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions by way
of an accelerated bookbuilt placing (the “Placing Shares™) arranged by Merrill Lynch
International (“Merrill Lynch”) to raise approximately £36 million (after deduction of
commissions and expenses). The placing price is subject to agreement between
Merrill Lynch and Old Mutual and will be announced as soon as practicable after the
close of the accelerated bookbuilding period. The entire Placing represents
approximately 1.3 per cent of the current issued ordinary share capital of Old Mutual.

The proceeds of the Placing will be used to fund the payment of the second fixed
instalment of the payments due to Harold Baxter and Gary Pilgrim, the principals of
Old Mutual’s US management subsidiary, Pilgrim Baxter & Associates Limited,
under the restructuring agreement terms in relation to the Pilgrim Baxter revenue
share agreement, announced on 14 March 2002.

The book will open with immediate effect and will close no later than 7™ March 2003.

The Placing is not being made in or into South Africa, Japan, Canada, Namibia,
Zimbabwe or Malawi.

6" March 2003
Enquiries:
Old Mutual plc, London
James Poole, Director of Investor Relations Tel: + 44 20 7569 0100
Don Hope Tel: +44 20 7569 0124
Merrill Lynch Tel: +44 20 7628 1000
Rupert Hume-Kendall
Michael Findlay
College Hill London Tel: + 44 20 7457 2020
Tony Friend

This announcement does not constitute an invitation to underwrite, subscribe for or
otherwise acquire or dispose of any ordinary shares. Past performance is no guide to
future performance and persons needing advice should consult an independent
financial adviser.



Merrill Lynch i1s acting for Old Mutual in connection with the Placing and no one
else, and will not be responsible to anyone other than Old Mutual for providing the
protections afforded to clients of Merrill Lynch or for giving advice in relation to the
Placing.

Appendix
: FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE PLACING

The Placing is to be made by Merrill Lynch acting as agent of Old Mutual.

The Placing Shares will rank pari passu with Old Mutual's existing ordinary shares of
10p each, including the right to participate in all dividends and other distributions
declared, paid or made after the date of this announcement on or in respect of such
shares. Accordingly the Placing Shares will rank for the proposed final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2002 of 3.1p per share, announced on 24 February 2003.
Placees' commitments to acquire the Placing Shares will be subject to the Placing
agreement not being terminated. Commitments to acquire Placing Shares made in the
bookbuilding process are not capable of termination or rescission by placees in any
circumstances. '

Confirmation of an allocation of Placing Shares to a placee will constitute the
agreement of such placee (subject to the conditions referred to above):

1) to subscribe at the placing price for the number of Placing Shares allocated in
a proportion to be determined at the discretion of Merrill Lynch,;

(i)  that it is not a person in Japan, Canada, South Africa, Namibia, Zimbabwe or
Malawi and is outside the United States (as defined in Regulation S under the
US Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”)) or is a "Qualified
Institutional Buyer" (within the meaning of Rule 144A under the Securities
Act); and

(iii)  that it is a person whose ordinary activities involve acquiring, holding,
managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes
of its business if it is in the United Kingdom.

Settlement for the Placing Shares is expected to occur three London business days
after confirmation of the price and allocation is sent to placees.

Any Placing Shares to be placed under the arrangements will be acquired on the basis
that the placee has not relied (i) on any information, representation and/or warranties
from Merrill Lynch nor (ii) on any information, representation and/or warranties from
Old Mutual save for the information contained in this announcement.

Settlement of subscriptions for Placing Shares will only be free of United Kingdom
stamp duty and stamp duty reserve tax ("SDRT") if the Placing Shares are not
acquired in connection with arrangements to issue depository receipts or to transfer or
issue Placing Shares into a clearance service and on the basis that subscribers of
Placing Shares are not, and are not acting as nominee or agent for, a person (or its
nominee) who is or may be liable for United Kingdom stamp duty or SDRT under
Section 67, 70, 93 or 96 of the Finance Act 1986. If all such requirements are not



-

satisfied, or the settlement relates to other dealings in Placing Shares, United
Kingdom stamp duty or SDRT may be payable for which neither Old Mutual nor
Merrill Lynch will be responsible.

The making of an offer in, or to residents or citizens of, certain jurisdictions ("Foreign
Shareholders") may be restricted by laws of the relevant jurisdictions. Foreign
Shareholders should inform themselves about and observe any such apphcable legal
requirements in their respective jurisdictions.

This announcement does not constitute an offer to sell or issue, or constitute the
solicitation of an offer, in any jurisdiction in which such offer is unlawful.

Application has been made for the Placing Shares to be admitted to the Official List of
the UK Listing Authority and for admission to trading on the London Stock
Exchange. Applications will be made for the Placing Shares to be listed on the JSE
Securities Exchange South Africa and the Malawi, Namibian and Zimbabwe Stock
Exchanges.



NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO US PERSONS.

This announcement is not an offer of the Old Mutual plc shares ( the “ordinary
shares™) for sale into the United States. The ordinary shares have not been and
will not be registered under the US Securities Act of 1933 and may not be offered
or sold in the United States unless they are registered or exempt from
registration. There will be no public offer of ordinary shares into the United
States.

OLD MUTUAL PLC
RESULT OF PLACING OF ORDINARY SHARES

Further to the announcement regarding the proposed placing ("the Placing") of new
ordinary shares to raise approximately £36 million (after the deduction of
commissions and expenses), Old Mutual plc is pleased to announce that 49,520,000
new ordinary shares ("the Placing Shares") have been successfully placed at a price of
74p per ordinary share following completion of an accelerated bookbuilding process.

The Placing Shares will rank pari passu with Old Mutual's existing ordinary shares of
10p each, including the right to participate in all dividends and other distributions
declared, paid or made after the date of this announcement on or in respect of such
shares.

Enquiries:
Old Mutual Don Hope
+44 20 7569 0124
James Poole
+44 20 7569 0100

Merrill Lynch Rupert Hume-Kendall
Michael Findlay
+44 20 7628 1000

College Hill Tony Friend
+44 20 7457 2020

This announcement does not constitute an offer to sell or issue, or constitute the
solicitation of an offer, in any jurisdiction in which such offer is unlawful.

This announcement does not constitute an invitation to underwrite, subscribe for or
otherwise acquire or dispose of any ordinary shares. Past performance is no guide to
future performance and persons needing advice should consult an independent
financial adviser.

Merrill Lynch is acting for Old Mutual in connection with the Placing and no one
else, and will not be responsible to anyone other than Old Mutual for providing the
protections afforded to clients of Merrill Lynch or for giving advice in relation to the
Placing. '
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Old Mutual plc
Results for the year ended 31 December 2002

HIGHLIGHTS

» Group operating profit* up 8% in Rand to R11,431 million, but down 15% in Sterling to £724 million

» Operating earnings per share*, at 11.3p, 7% lower than in 2001 in Sterling, up 20% to 179 cents in
Rand terms

> Record life sales of £5657 million on an Annual Premium Equivalent basis
> Record value of life assurance new business at £130 million (after tax)

» Asset management results resilient in difficult market conditions, with net positive cash inflows of
over $5 billion (including $3.3 billion from our US life operations) in the USA

> Return on equity 16%

» Final dividend unchanged at 3.1p™*

“ 2002 was another challenging year in world stock markets, and the strength of the diversity
of our businesses has been demonstrated in these results. We have been focused on driving
performance from our major acquisitions and realising synergies around the Group. The
economics of the long term savings industry remain compelling, and we are well positioned
to take advantage of opportunities as they arise.”

Jim Sutcliffe, Chief Executive, 24 February 2003

* Operating profit is based on a long term investment return, before-goodwill amortisation and impairment, write-down of
investment in Dimension Data Holidings plc, Nedcor restructuring and integration costs and non-operating items. Operating
earnings per share are stated on the same basis, but after tax and minority interests.

** The dividend recommended (final 3.1p per share, making 4.8p per share for the year) will be converted, for payment to
shareholders on the branch registers and the Namibian section of the principal register, into local currency at exchange
rates ruling on 3 April 2003.

4 [ TP N P Y

ISNIA AR b1 1ma] mlsr Dreraces Dalcames 3000



Old Mutual plc

Results for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

A full copy of these results and the associated presentation to analysts, together with photographs
and biographical details of the Executive Directors of Old Mutual plc, are available in electronic format:
please call the numbers below. Alternatively they are available for download from the Company’s

website at www.oldmutual.com

Further enquiries:

Old Mutual plc, London:

Jim Sutcliffe, Chief Executive

Julian Roberts, Group Finance Director
James Poole, Director, Corporate Affairs
Julie Saxton, Media Relations

or South Africa:
Nad Pillay, Head of Communications, South Africa

College Hill Associates, London:
Gareth David
Tony Friend

or South Africa:
Nicholas Williams

9 Hiaohlinohte

24 February 2003

Tel: +44 (0)20 7569 0100

Tel: +44 (0)7768 991096
+44 (0)7766 726007

Tel: +27 (0)21 509 2446

Tel: +44 (0)20 7457 2020

Tel: +27 (0)83 607 0761

Old Mutual nle Press Releace 2002
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Chief Executive’s Statement

2002 was a year of bedding down for Old Mutual on its path to internationalisation. Each of our recent
acquisitions in the USA and UK made progress towards its long term goals. Our acquisition of BoE
made us the largest bank in South Africa by some measures, and our core South African life
assurance business had a solid year in tough conditions.

Our results showed the benefits of the diversity that our recent acquisitions have provided. We
struggled with poor equity markets and volatile currencies, but advanced strongly where the
environment was favourable, as in the US fixed income market. We now have a mix of equity and
fixed interest-based businesses, with a good spread of both retail and institutional clients. With some
60% of our business in South Africa, 30% in the USA and 10% in the UK, we were able to produce a
resilient set of results.

Group operating profit' for 2002 totalled £724m, whilst operating earnings per share' (EPS) were
11.3p (2001: £856m and 12.1p (both restated) respectively). A significant increase in US life profit and
10% increase in South African life profit in Rand offset the impact of poor equity markets, the dramatic
fall in the Rand in late 2001, and currency translation losses at Nedcor. Results in Rand were better —
operating profit increased 8% and EPS 20%. Return on equity remained very satisfactory at 16%. Our
embedded value (adjusted for market value uplift of listed subsidiaries) increased by 12% to £3.9bn,
as the Rand strengthened during 2002, but reduced in Rand to R54.3bn for the same reason.

We had record life sales of £557m (on an Annual Premium Equivalent basis) and record value of life
new business of £130m (after tax). We had particularly strong results in the USA (included for a full
year for the first time), where our fixed interest-based annuity business was well positioned.
Customers became more conservative in the face of a downturn in the equity markets and low bank
CD rates, and consequently our product offerings were well received. Sales in the USA were three
times as high as for the year prior to our ownership. The USA contributed 54% of our total life sales.
Our South African sales force (PFA) produced increased sales, particularly of recurring premium
products; and we were successful with some large sales of high margin goup with-profit annuity
(Platinum) business.

Returns to customers have declined sharply in absolute terms, as investment markets have declined.
We are conscious of the implications, but we remain convinced that the long term savings industry
continues to have an attractive future.

Our asset management businesses showed good relative investment performance for their clients —
over 80% of our US institutional clients had returns exceeding their benchmarks for 3 year periods.
OMAM(SA) was placed second in the AF Large Manager Watch survey for the year. In the UK,
OMAM(UK)'s fund performance continued to improve, with top quartile performance belng achieved
over the year for all recently launched retail funds.

Group assets under management for our retained businesses declined 14% to £123.6bn. Net cash
inflow of $5.1bn in the USA, our emphasis on value investing, and the considerable fixed interest
component produced this creditable result, which compared favourably with declines of 22% in the
S&P 500 Index, 32% in the NASDAQ Composite Index, and 24% in the FTSE 100 Index.

We made a small profit at Gerrard in very tough conditions as a result of sharp cuts in expenses.
Mutual & Federal delivered its customary tidy profit.

! Operating profit is based on a long term investment return, before goodwill amortisation and impairment, write-down of
investment in Dimension Data Holdings pic, Nedcor restructuring and integration costs and non-operating items. Operating
earnings per share are stated on the same basis, but after tax and minority interests.

ke Chief Exeritive's Statemeant . Old Mutual ole Prece Release 2007
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Chief Executive's Statement (continued)

As mentioned above, we expanded our South African footprint by acquiring BoE, the sixth largest
bank in South Africa. This was in line with our stated strategy of participating in the consolidation in the
industry. We plan to deliver some RS00m per annum of synergies in 2006. BoE was under stress
when it was purchased. It has returned results in line with expectations in the first six months and
deposits have been strong, showing that customer confidence has been restored.

During the year we made substantial progress in increasing the strategic focus of the Group. In the
UK, we sold GNI, Old Mutual Securities and King & Shaxson Bond Brokers, as they did not fit within
our asset management and asset gathering strategy, and thereby considerably reduced our risk
profile. In the USA we sold NWQ, where we had the opportunity to enter into a distribution
arrangement with the purchaser, Nuveen, and where we had an attractive alternative as a core
holding in Thompson, Siegel & Walmsley. We have sold a further six smaller US affiliates since the
beginning of 2002. Our planned disposal programme and the consolidation of our 2000 and 2001
acquisitions are now largely complete.

Our capital position was strengthened during the year by a successful Eurobond placing, and by an
innovative preference share issue at Nedcor. Capital adequacy remains healthy in all of our
businesses that have formal capital adequacy requirements. Our US life business required $313m of
additional capital to support its growth, and we constrained its marketing efforts in the fourthquarter to
limit its capital usage.

Our UK businesses are now under the leadership of Hasan Askari. He has been on the board of these
operations for several years and has long experience in the financial services industry. Hasan also
looks after our Indian interests. Management has been further strengthened by Bob Head, who has
joined us as International Development Director. He was previously Chief Executive of Smile, the
internet bank, and Finance Director of egg plc before that. Bob brings a wealth ofinternational
insurance and banking experience and we expect him to play an important role in our future growth.

Your Board was sufficiently encouraged by the outturn for 2002 to recommend an unchanged final
dividend of 3.1p per share. This will be converted into Rand for payment to South African shareholders
at the rate ruling on 3 April 2003. '

Last year saw some particularly harsh conditions in equity markets around the world. The diversity we
have so far established stood us in good stead in 2002 and we are now considering the next leg of our
internationalisation. A bigger third leg to our portfolio will, we believe, provide further valuable stability.
Returns to shareholders remain our key guide and we will not be rushed.

Outlook

Each of our businesses faces 2003 with some confidence, and each draws support from the whole.
We still have a great deal to do to deliver a good return on equity from some businesses, but our
operating management teams are bedded down and focused on bringing about the best possible
results in their markets. We may be buffeted by markets and currencies, but the diverse nature of our
business allows us to be resilient in a wide variety of circumstances.

Jim Sutcliffe
Chief Executive
24 February 2003

4 Chief Executive’'s Statement Old Mutual ple Press Release 2002
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Operating and Financial Review

BUSINESS REVIEW

SOUTH AFRICA

Smoothed operating profit for the South African businesses in 2002 of R9,016 million decreased by
5% from R9,536 million in 2001. Translated into Sterling, the 2002 result of £571 million was down
26% from £770 million in 2001. The contribution to smoothed operating profit in 2002 from Old Mutual
South Africa (OMSA), Nedcor and Mutual & Federal was R5,855 million, R2,605 million and R556
million respectively.

OMSA has successfully grown and continues to develop its distribution capability and to strengthen its
broker relationships, resulting in improved productivity and distribution. Customer service has also
improved, with the delivery of a one-stop client service function and the introduction of new product
ranges in both retail and institutional sectors.

The most significant events of the year for Nedcor were its acquisition of BoE Limited (BoE) and the
consequent restructuring of its banking divisions. The challenge for 2003 and beyond is to implement
the merger and integration plans successfully and to realise the anticipated benefits of the merger
synergies.

Mutual & Federal has steadily improved its underlying underwriting profitability through stringent risk
selection and withdrawal from unprofitable business.

The success of bancassurance initiatives in the Group’s South African businesses is integral to their
organic growth and maintaining their position as a leading financial services group in South Africa.

Black Economic Empowerment (BEE) is a key focus in South Africa and the issues of ownership and
partnership and their financing are being considered. The financial services industry has been
proactive in initiating discussions on a BEE charter for the industry. The South African companies are
actively involved in this process, and have been finalising their BEE strategies and programmes.

LIFE ASSURANCE

Summary financial performance

The South African life assurance business delivered good results in difficult market conditions, with the
FTSE/JSE Africa ALSI falling 11% during the year. Operating profit, before long term investment
return, was R3,283 million, an increase of 6% from R3,085 million in 2001. A satisfactory return on
internal capital allocated of 22% was achieved, compared to 24% in 2001, after Capital Gains Tax was
included for a full year for the first time.

The value of life new business after tax was R1,124 million, 34% higher than the R840 million
achieved in 2001, with Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) of R3,705 million, up 18% on the R3,142
million in 2001. The increase in the value of new business was due to significantly higher Group
Business, up from R334 million to R600 million. This was mainly due to an 80% increase in single
premium new business arising from a few large Group with-profit annuity cases. Individual newv
business, at R524 million, was 4% higher than the R506 million reported in 2001, with strong growth in
recurring premium business. The average margin on new business of 30% of APE increased from the
prior year average margin of 27%, but remained stable over the year at the product level.

5  Oneratina and Financial Review Old Mutual ple Press Release 2002
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

The margin improvement reflects a change in the mix of products, mainly as a result of high Group
Business single premium volumes.

The value of in-force business of R9,419 million at 31 December 2002 increased by 3% from R9,176
million at 31 December 2001.

The life business cash outflow was disappointing at R4.4 billion in 2002 and substantially worse than
the R2.0 billion in 2001. This result reflects lower Individual Business single premiums and the impact
of blocks of life-wrapped institutional investment business moving to other managers as part of the
ongoing diversification of investment responsibility by pension fund trustees.

Qutlook

While the South African life assurance business is positioned for growth, recovery in the markets will
impact its success. Although new business volumes have been high during 2002, the business
expects a decline in Group Business sales in 2003 as a consequence of the contracting with-profit
annuity market.

Individual Business

Financial performance

Operating profit, before long term investment return, for Individual Business of R2,352 million was up
9% from R2,152 million in 2001. This increase was largely the result of an increase in the average
level of policyholders’ funds in 2002 compared with 2001, and the net positive effect of assumption
changes, based on positive experience variances.

The value of new business after tax of R524 million increased by 4% from R506 million in 2001. The
new business APE of R2,670 million was 8% higher than that achieved in 2001. Single premiums are
strongly correlated to the investment markets and were some 12% lower than in 2001, or 5% after
taking account of investment in the Old Mutual International offshore product range. The volatility of
the Rand and uncertainty in global investment markets adversely impacted the growth in single
premiums.

Following its launch in 2001, the Greenlight flexible range of insurance protection products attracted
good inflows over the year. Recurring premium business was up 22%, driven by sales of Greenlight,
Investment Horizons and the re-priced funeral product range within Group Schemes.

Business development

The customer segmentation strategy launched in 2001 has brought increased focus and improved
customer service. The reorganisation of the Private Wealth segment businesses culminated in the re-
branding of Mint, which targets affluent clients, as Private Wealth Management, and the launch of
Fairbairn Capital in July. Dollar and Sterling-denominated life, endowment and investment products
were launched early in 2002 to satisfy the demands for products using investors’ R750,000 offshore
investment allowance through the Group’s Guernsey operation. Fairbairn Capital grew its client base
during the year by 14%.

Individual Business continued to focus on building its distribution capability during 2002, particularly in
Gauteng province, with a focus on quality of recruitment and managing under-performers.
Improvements in Personal Finance Advice (PFA) productivity were achieved and resulted in increased
distribution efficiency and have positioned the business favourably to move forward.
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Bancassurance initiatives and joint ventures with Nedcor now span all major customer segments,
following the acquisition of BoE by Nedcor and the reorganisation of their collective businesses. New
joint ventures between OMSA and Nedcor, which target high net worth (HNW) customers and which
offer credit protection to Nedcor’s customers, have been initiated. The joint venture in the HNW area
completes the range of offerings in the Private Wealth Management segment, as it now offers fiduciary
and discretionary portfolio management services. The integration of Old Mutual Bank and Permanent
Bank was successfully concluded, with the retention of clients exceeding expectations. Re-branding of
Permanent Bank branches as Old Mutual Bank is underway and the combined operation is well
positioned for the year ahead. Advisor sales of life products in Nedbank (upper income) and Peoples
Bank (lower income) are progressing well, as are sales in bank branches by bank staff. Total life
bancassurance APE was up by 14% on the previous year.

Outlook

Individual Business is continuing to look at opportunities to develop its product range in innovative
ways. In the Personal Finance middle income segment, growth in distribution capability, particularly in
Gauteng province, productivity improvements and strengthening broker relationships position the
business for growth. The Private Wealth segment is also now alble to offer a competitive and broad
range of investment, fiduciary and advisory solutions as well as services to meet the needs of affluent
and HNW customers.

Bancassurance remains a key channel and OMSA is focused on optimising the success of its joint
ventures with Nedcor.

Group Business

Financial performance

Operating profit, before long term investment return, was R931 million compared with R933 million in
2001. Notwithstanding higher average asset levels, the 2002 result was impacted by investment in the
healthcare business on the development of the new healthcare product, Oxygen, and in Employee
Benefits where there was significant expenditure on its new administration system (Compass).

The value of new business after tax of R600 million increased by 80% from R334 million in 2001. New
business APE increased by 53%, with sales of single premium business of R7,385 million in 2002,
71% higher than the R4,331 million in 2001, as a result of several large blocks of with-profit annuity
business. New recurring premium sales were 22% higher than the previous year. The new business
margin of 58% was higher than the 49% margin achieved in the prior year as a result of an increased
proportion of single premium with-profit annuity business.

Business development

The new retail healthcare product, Oxygen, was launched in the second half of the year and was
favourably received by the market.

Investment in new technology administration systems continued throughout 2002, with significant
progress being made in the development of a new retirement fund administration platform using the
Compass system. The first large client migrated to the new platform towards the end of 2002 and the
focus in 2003 will be to move remaining clients on to the new platform. This enablesimproved:
customer service and choice, and places Employee Benefits in a strong competitive position.
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Following Nedcor’s acquisition of BoE, the Symmetry multi-manager offering has been extended after
the inclusion of NIB Investments and Edge Investments. New structured and preferred risk products
have been launched.

Outlook

Systems and product developments over the last two years have created an environment where unit
cost reduction will be delivered together with increased product functionality and revenue
opportunities. These, together with the strong capital position, should enable Group Business to
continue to target new clients, as well as leveraging its existing client base.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Fund management

Fund management operations in South Africa include Old Mutual Asset Managers (South Africa)
(OMAM(SA)), Old Mutual Unit Trusts (OMUT), Old Mutual Specialised Finance (OMSFIN) and Old
Mutual Properties (OMP).

Financial performance

Operating profit of R441 million decreased by 4% from R458 million in 2001, mainly as a result of
lower trading profit at OMUT. Contributing positively to this result was OMAM(SA)’s effective cost
management and shift towards higher margin products. OMSFIN significantly expanded its corporate
lending activities, strong origination and underwriting deal flow and continued to grow its structured
and trading revenues within a conservative credit and market risk management philosophy. OMP
made good progress developing third party revenues.

Business development

OMAM(SA)'s ongoing strategy of broadening its investment capabilities has been successful,
especially in the areas of alternative asset classes and specialist conventional asset capabilities.
Its absolute return fund products have performed well and have been popular with clients and
intermediaries, as have local and international hedge funds, The company is well placed to meet
continued demand for these products.

OMAMY(SA) is the largest manager of infrastructural assets for institutions in South Africa and
manages, directly and indirectly, a total of R1.9 billion in this asset class.

BEE joint ventures with Setsing and Umbono Fund Managers have continued to develop and
OMAM(SA) remains committed to its role in this regard. Following the acquisition of BoE by Nedcor,
a controlling stake in BoE Asset Management was sold to AKA Capital as part of a major BEE deal,
with Old Mutual and Nedcor taking minority stakes.

OMAM(SA)’s investment performance relative to its peers and to index-related benchmarks showed
considerable improvement over the year. Retirement funds managed by OMAM(SA) finished the year
in second position out of the ten largest asset managers covered in the Alexander Forbes Large
Manager Watch Survey (South African retirement funds including international assets). OMAM(SA)
was also placed second over five years. OMAM(SA)’s range of Profile Funds (pooled retirement funds)
continued to perform strongly over the year as well as continuing to deliver consistent and superior
(mostly upper quartile) returns over the longer term. Eight out of ten of its unit trust equity funds
achieved either top quartile or first positions in their peer groups.
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Outlook

The weakness in the South African and global equity markets negatively affected absolute return
levels in 2002. Whilst the valuation of the South African equity market is supported by sound economic
fundamentals, the country’s close links to the global economy make forecasting difficult in the current
uncertain environment.

BANKING

Summary financial performance

Operating profit from the Group’s worldwide banking operations of R3,489 million decreased by 24%
from R4,572 million in 2001. Translated into Sterling, the 2002 result of £221 million was down 40%
from £369 million in 2001. Following the merger of Old Mutual Bank with Permanent Bank’s deposit-
taking activities and infrastructure with effect from 1 January 2003, the Nedcor group now represents
the Group’s only banking interests. Old Mutual Bank’s results were previously included in OMSA’s
results, whilst Permanent Bank was part of the Nedcor group.

NEDCOR

Financial performance

2002 has been a challenging and eventful year for Nedcor and for the South African banking industry.
The merger with BoE during the year created the opportunity for a major restructuring and re-
alignment of the Nedcor Group. This culminated in the merger of four banks to form the new Nedbank
Limited (Nedbank) on 1 January 2003.

Operating profit of R3,489 million is stated before goodwill amortisation (R502 million), write-downof
the investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc (R1,080 million) and restructuring and integration costs
(R227 million).

Loans and advances of R195 billion in 2002 increased by 33% from R147 billion in 2001, despite a
reduction of R9.8 billion in Rand-translated offshore advances. However, net interest income grew by
only 20% (12% excluding BoE) to R6,363 million from R5,316 million in 2001. This was a result of
pressure on margins from the liquidity squeeze in a year of market turbulence, as well as lower
endowment income due to cash injections into BoE and other strategic activities.

Non-interest revenue of R6,931 million increased by 20% from R5,799 million in 2001.

During 2002, the specific and general provisions charged to the profit and loss account decreased by
5% to R1,390 million, including BoE, from R1,462 million in 2001. The provisions charged in 2002
include the release of the R400 million general risk provision prudently raised at 31 December 2001.
Excluding this provision raised in 2001 and released in 2002, the provisions charged to the profit and
loss account of R1,790 million in 2002 increased by 69% from R1,062 million in 2001. This increase
relates to additional provisions for the ring-fenced Business Banking small and medium enterprises
book and the micro-loan sector. Following the acquisition of BoE, Nedcor's exposure to micro-lending,
and to retailers active in micro-lending, increased to R972 million from R377 million in 2001. Nedcor’s
total unsecured exposures to the micro-loan industry represent only 0.5% of total advances.

9 Operating and Financial Review Old Mutual plc Press Release 2002



()

Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Operating expenses of R8,573 million, including translation losses of R1,011 million, increased by
63% in 2002 from R5,267 million in 2001. Excluding translation losses, expenses would have
increased by 44%. The efficiency ratio calculated by Nedcor declined to 55.4% in 2002 from 52.5% on
a comparable basis in 2001, but remained constant at 52.5% excluding BoE.

In 2002, one-off merger and restructuring costs of R204 million after tax have been charged to the
profit and loss account. This figure includes R86 million for Nedcor’s restructuring and integration
costs and R118 million for the closure and restructuring costs of Permanent Bank’s deposit-taking
activities and infrastructure, which are being merged with Old Mutual Bank.

The market value of Nedcor's investment in 103 million shares in Dimension Data Holdings plc has
declined further and has been marked to market at its 31 December 2002 price of R4.02 per share,
down from R14.50 at 31 December 2001.

Total statutory capital of R27.7 billion (2001: R19.5 billion) represents an overall capital adequacy of
11.0% (2001: 11.4%), above the statutory requirement of 10%. Included in statutory capital is new
preference share capital of R2 billion, which is disclosed as non-equity minority interests in the Old
Mutual Group accounts.

Business development

The acquisition of BoE and the consequent restructuring of the Group were the most significant events
for Nedcor during the year and fully align with Nedcor’s growth strategy. The challenge for 2003 and
beyond is to implement the merger and integration plans and realise anticipated synergy benefits.

Nedcor has begun to exploit its core processing competence in the international arena to create a
recurring, external income stream. This has progressed well, with the Swisscard outsourcing contract
successfully meeting key milestones during the year.

Restructuring and integration

The acquisition of BoE was the catalyst for an overall Nedcor Group reorganisation, which integrated
BoE, Nedcor Investment Bank (NIB), Cape of Good Hope Bank and parts of Peoples Bank with
Nedbank with effect from 1 January 2003. Nedcor also acquired the 11.6% of the share capital of NIB
which the Group did not previously own, for R685 million net of costs, with effect from 1 October 2002.

The integration is proceeding well. Senior staff losses have been minimal, asset growth has been
robust, deposit return flows have been strong and liquidity has been optimised. Recurring synergies
net of integration costs, and including funding and capital efficiencies, are expected to grow from R110
million before tax in 2003 to R905 million before tax from 2006 onwards.

NIB acquired the remaining 50% of Franklin Templeton Nedcor Investment Bank Asset Management
Limited from Franklin Templeton, with effect from 1 October 2002, for a consideration of R180 million
as part of the rationalisation of the wealth management activities of Nedbank, NiB and BoE. The
wealth management activities were then classified into private client and institutional asset
management. The private client activities, both domestically and internationatly, will continue as a
Nedcor business operating under the BoE brand. Institutional asset management was sold with effect
from 1 January 2003 to empowerment partners, spearheaded by AKA Capital and partnered by OMSA
and Peoples Bank. :
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

The merged entity between certain Permanent Bank operations and Old Mutual Bank will operate
under the Old Mutual Bank brand as a division of Nedbank witheffect from 1 January 2003. Its
primary focus will be to deliver banking products to South African life clients.

Outlook

The solid performance of Nedcor’s core businesses in 2002 positions it well for the future, with an
improving South African banking environment and the turnaround in declining interest margins.
Following increased technology investment, the merger with BoE provides the enlarged Nedcor group
with opportunities to leverage advantages of scale and thus increase efficiencies and reduce cost-to-
income ratios.

Nedcor's multi-brand strategy and strategic alliances have led to increased market share in recent
years. This will be augmented by the addition of BoE products and brands with its new operational
structure enabling focus on outstanding client service.

Nedcor's strategy offers low-risk growth opportunities and focuses on markets and initiatives that lie
within its core competencies. Given continued growth in its core businesses and alliances, stable
credit and interest rate conditions and a successful integration with BoE, Nedcor anticipates positive
results in 2003.

GENERAL INSURANCE

MUTUAL & FEDERAL

Financial performance

Operating profit of R656 million, including long term investment return, from the Group’s 51% owned
South African general insurance operation, Mutual & Federal, represented a decrease of 2% from
R570 million last year. This decline is primarily due to a lower investment return following the payment
of a special dividend of 350 cents per share in December 2001.

Mutual & Federal returned an underwriting surplus of R2 million for the year, compared to R62 million
in 2001, reflecting primarily the creation of additional provisions and the difficult trading environment.

Gross premium income of R5,603 million was 15% higher than last year as a resuit of organic growth
in its portfolios. However, net premiums increased only 11% from 2001, due primarily to increased
reinsurance costs. Net claims escalated by approximately 12%, which reflects the impact of inflation,
certain marine and fire claims, and weather-related losses in the third quarter. The underwriting ratio,
before transfers to statutory provisions, nevertheless improved to 2.4% from 2.0% in 2001, and this is
expected to be some 25% better than the overall industry average.

The solvency margin, being the ratio of net assets to net premiums, remained high and was in excess
of 60%, well above the minimum required to support current operations.

Business development

During 2003, Mutual & Federal intends to continue to exploit current distribution channels and develop
further opportunities, including those in the agricultural sector. In addition, the company will seek to
identify additional cost saving opportunities with a view to improving the long term profitablity of the
organisation.
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Outlook

Mutual & Federal expects the improvements experienced during 2002 to continue during 2003. It is
anticipated that the premium rate increases implemented will continue to yield positive results despite
a continued escalation in claims costs. There are signs that the contraction in the industry during the
last four years has stabilised and there has been a return to more rigorous underwriting standards.

UNITED STATES

Operating profit from the Group’s US asset management and life assurance operations of $266 million
increased by 43% from $186 million in 2001, with a full year of Fidelity & Guaranty Life included for the
first time. Translated into Sterling, the 2002 result of £178 million increased by 38% from £129 million
in 2001. These positive results reflect the resilience to difficult equity market conditions and underline
the benefits to the Group of the diversity of its US businesses, particularly their diverse range of asset
classes and investment styles. The contribution to operating profit in 2002 from US asset management
and US life was $142 million and $124 million respectively.

Rationalisation of the US asset management group is substantially complete. The business is focused
on attracting new funds through superior fund performance and through leveraging the strength of its
diverse asset mix and distribution capabilities. In 2002, the US asset management group developed a
comprehensive managed account (wrap) strategy under Old Mutual Investment Partners, developed
its relationship with other Old Mutual Group businesses and continued to target distribution synergies
among the firms, as evidenced by introducing five new funds sub-advised by Old Mutual affiliates to
Pilgrim Baxter's PBHG mutual fund platform.

The record sales of $4.0 billion achieved by the Group’s US life business in 2002 were, to a large
extent, attributable to its competitive positioning, the delivery of new products to the market, its wide
distribution network and strong relationships with key distributors. The Group is committed to
supporting the US life business through the provision of capital to fund growth. The US life business
took advantage of synergies within the Group and awarded a hedging mandate to, and instituted a
bond lending programme with, two US asset management firms, during 2002.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Financial performance

Operating profit of $142 million from the Group’s US asset management business decreased by 15%
from $167 million in 2001. However, comparing the 2001 results on a likefor-like basis after adjusting
for the impact of disposals, operating profit declined 5% from $150 million. This was achieved despite
challenging equity markets in which the S&P 500 Index decreased by 22% and the Russell 1000
Growth Index decreased by 29%. Conversely, fixed income markets contributed favourably to these
results as indicated by the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index, which increased by 10%. Overall,
these positive results were attributable to the diversity of the asset management styles, the strength in
value-focused styles, positive fixed income markets, positive net fund flows and significant reductions
in head office costs.

Funds under management, including $10.1 billion managed for the Group’s US life business, declined

by 15% to $127 billion at the end of 2002 compared to $150 billion at the beginning of the year.
However, $15 billion of this reduction was due to divestitures of certain affiliates. The group gathered

12 Operating and Financial Review Old Mutual plc Press Release 2002



¥

Operating and Financial Review (continued)

significant net fund inflows of $5.1 billion, (including $3.3 billion from US life), which were more than
offset by market-related declines of $13 billion. Funds under management declined by 6% on a
comparable basis.

Overall, the US investment business continued to produce superior relative performance for its clients.
Assets managed for institutional clients represented approximately 89% of funds under management
at the end of 2002. Of these separate account strategies, the majority outperformed their benchmarks,
with more than 80% of assets outperforming theirrespective benchmarks for three and five-year
periods on an asset-weighted basis.

Mutual fund assets, excluding sub-advised funds, represented approximately 11% of funds under
management. On an asset-weighted basis, the four and five star-rated funds managed by the Group’s
US asset management firms represented 58% of their total mutual fund assets rated by Morningstar.

Business development

The senior management team in Boston works closely with the firms on distribution initiatives,
leveraging best practices and various value-added programmes for clients. Successful initiatives
completed in 2002 included the expansion of the PBHG mutual fund platform, development of a
comprehensive managed account strategy under the umbrella of Old Mutual Investment Partners,
branding initiatives to better leverage the Old Mutual name in the USA, as well as growth in
relationships with the Group’s US life business.

Outlook

The diverse capabilities and product offerings of the Group’s US asset management business place it
in a strong position to benefit in most market conditions and dampen the impact of market downturns.

The suite of investment products will continue to build on the strength of US asset management
institutional capabilities, as well as selective retail growth opportunities. Enhancing distribution
capabilities, together with superior investment performance relative to peer and benchmark, are the
key elements of the Group’s US asset management strategy for 2003.

Old Mutual Asset Managers (US) (OMAM(US))

Financial and fund performance

Operating profit from the affiliates within OMAM(US) was $47 million in 2002 compared to $55 million
in 2001. Although OMAM(US) benefited from a market preference for fixed income products and
value-style equity investments, the gains made by these products were more than offset by adverse
market movements as well as the sale of NWQ.

Funds under management at OMAM(US) were $70.9 billion at the end of 2002, a decrease of 8% from
$76.7 billion at the end of 2001, which was mainly due to the sale of NWQ. OMAM(US) gathered
significant net fund inflows of $7.6 billion during 2002, led by Dwight Asset Management and Clay
Finlay, compared to net fund inflows of $6.9 billion in 2001, a year on year increase of 10%. Inflows
were offset by negative market movements of $6.5 billion, or 9% of funds under management at the
beginning of the year. These funds include $10.1 billion managed on behalf of the Group’s US life
business.

As part of its strategy to expand distribution capabilities, OMAM(US) sold NWQ, a value-oriented
equity fund manager with $6.9 billion of funds under management, to The John Nuveen Company
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(Nuveen) for $120 million. As part of this transaction, a strategic alliance was formed to sub-advise
future investment products sponsored and distributed by Nuveen, which should lead to additional
revenues of $20 million.

Business development

OMAM(US)’s multi-style, multi-product offerings have potential attractions for other financial services
organisations that have broad distribution, but need to supplement their existing product lines. To
leverage its asset management capabilities, OMAM(US) has established a centralised marketing and
service entity focused on managed or wrap accounts for external financial services firms. In addition,
the Director of Sales, Marketing and Product Development works closely with affiliates to increase
institutional distribution by focusing on the consultant community.

Pilgrim Baxter & Associates

Financial and fund performance

Operating profit of $26 million from Pilgrim Baxter decreased by 38% from $42 million in 2001,
primarily due to market-driven declines in growth-oriented investment products.

Funds under management of $6.8 billion at the end of 2002 decreased 46% from $12.6 billion at the
beginning of the year. Market declines reduced funds under management by $3.9 billion, or 31% of
funds under management at the beginning of the year. The firm also experienced net fund outflows of
$1.9 billion, or 15% of funds under management at the start ofthe year.

In March 2002, the Group renegotiated terms to acquire the residual 20% revenue-share interest of
Pilgrim Baxter through the payment of $175 million plus an earn-out over five years if profit growth
exceeds 7.5% per annum. This restructuring strengthens the Group’s position in the sizeable US retail
asset management market and further aligns the Group’s interests with those of Pilgrim Baxter in
maximising future growth and profits.

Business development

In 2002, Pilgrim Baxter opened up its PBHG platform to include products offered by other affiliates of
Old Mutual in order to create a best of class mutual fund platform. Pilgrim Baxter attracted total assets
of $1.4 billion for these portfolios during 2002, gathered primarily in the PBHG IRA Capital
Preservation Fund and the PBHG Clipper Focus Fund.

0ld Mutual Affiliates

Financial and fund performance

Operating profit from the firms that comprise Old Mutual Affiliates amounted to $69 million for 2002,
compared to $70 million in 2001. After normalising the 2001 results for the impact of disposals in
2001, operating profit in 2002 has improved on 2001 by some 20%.

Funds under management declined by 18% to $49.4 billion at the end of 2002, from $60.6 billion at
the end of 2001. Divestitures of four affiliates accounted for $7.5 billion of this decline. Market-related
declines reduced funds by $2.9 billion, with the remaining decline resulting from net fund outflows of
$0.6 billion and the transfer of $0.2 billion of funds from US asset management to other areas of the
Group.
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Business development

Throughout 2002, the senior management team in Boston worked with many of the Old Mutual
Affiliates to restructure economic agreements in order better to align shareholder and management
interests. Transactions with the firms that were targeted for disposal have either been completed, or
are expected to be substantially complete by 31 March 2003. The resulting organisation will be better
positioned to increase market share by leveraging the strength of its diverse asset mix, whilst
benefiting from the power of the focused manufacturing capabilities of the affiliates. This sharpening of
focus and aligning of interests are key to the future success of the Group’s US asset management
business.

US LIFE ASSURANCE

Financial performance

Operating profit in 2002 of $124 million includes a full year contribution from Fidelity & Guaranty Life
and compares favourably with $32 million (which excludes $13 million of transitional items related to
the purchase of Fidelity & Guaranty Life) for the six months for which its results were consolidated in
2001. :

The Group’s US life business saw unprecedented sales in 2002, totalling $4.0 billion (APE: $451
million). These levels reflected strong industry-wide sales of fixed annuities and also demonstrated US
life’s improved competitiveness. Taking advantage of US life’s competitive positioning, the Group
injected $313 million of capital to support the influx of profitable new business. This financial support
enabled US life to expand profitably and preserve its relative rating position. At the end of 2002, A.M.
Best confirmed its financial strength rating of “A” for Fidelity & Guaranty Life.

Value of new business after tax was $84 million, at a margin of 19%. The capital constraints impacting
the industry, together with active management by Dwight Asset Management (Dwight), enabled US
life to sell products at a return of capital of 12%. The increase in the margin reflects the lower discount
rate used as a consequence of the fall in interest rates.

The value of in-force business of $549 million in 2002 increased by 39% from $394 million in 2001.

During the year, $3.3 billion of net policy cash inflows were invested with Dwight. Taking advantage of
the synergies within the Group, a dynamic hedging mandate was awarded to another US asset
management firm, Analytic Investors, and a bond lending programme was instituted with
eSeclLending. Funds under management now total $10.5 billion, an increase of 61% over last year.

As part of the improved positioning of US life, Old Mutual is able to bring a more active investment
management approach to the bond portfolio through Dwight's active investment process. Whilst, in
common with other US life companies, various bond impairments and write-offs were suffered in 2002,
US life was able to work closely with Dwight to manage these risks. Over 2002, net realised gains
amounted to $44 million without impact on margins. Under US statutory accounting, not all these gains
are eligible to be treated as capital and the impact of defaults and impairments on capital was $48
million.

During 2002, an additional $30 million net of tax was recorded against goodwill arising on the

acquisition of Fidelity & Guaranty Life. This adjustment reflects the revised estimate of costs involved
in exiting an onerous contract, the liability for which was underprovided at the date of acquisition.
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Business development

Record sales in 2002 can be attributed to the competitive positioning of the business, the speed with
which new products were delivered to the market, and the breadth of the distribution network through
multiple channels, together with strong relationships with key distributors. The provision of capital by
the Group to US life enabled it to thrive in a year that saw the position of some of its key competitors
eroded due to capital constraints. '

Changes to support both agent and policyholder services took place during the year. An additional
sales support centre was created in Lincoln, Nebraska, whilst life underwriting capacity was enhanced
through the creation of a new underwriting facility. These steps form part of a transition that will be
beneficial to US life's agents and to overall profitability.

Qutlook

At the close of 2002, US interest rates fell to historically low levels and the yield curve flattened. These
factors are expected to have a negative effect on the fixed annuity sector. This, along with the number
of new competitors entering this sector from the ailing variable annuity sector, means that 2003 will be
a challenging environment for selling US life’s core products. In response to these challenges, US life
has recently launched a new range of equity-linked annuity products that are designed to offer
customers an attractive median between fixed ard equity investments. Despite the broader product
range, a lower level of sales is anticipated in 2003.

UNITED KINGDOM & REST OF WORLD

Operating losses, before long term investment return, from the Group’s UK and Rest of World asset
management and life assurance businesses were £1 million in 2002, compared to losses of £5 million
in 2001.

The Group’s UK business has experienced significant change in 2002, with the continued re-
engineering of Gerrard and the sale of three non-core businesses, GNI, Old Mutual Securities and
King & Shaxson Bond Brokers.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Private Client UK

Financial and fund performance

Gerrard’s operating profit of £4 million in 2002 compares with a loss of £10 million in 2001, the latter
including integration costs of £12 million. This was a positive result in the face of fierce bear market
pressures. Significant cost savings more than offset the 18% reduction in revenue year on year
compared to a fall in the FTSE 100 Index of 24% over the same period. The 2002 result includes one-
off profits of £6 million following the sale of current investments, the proceeds of which have been
used, in part, to fund restructuring costs of £5 million resulting from planned redundancies and branch
closures.

Fee revenues of £43 million reduced by 28% as a result of the market downturn and the transfer of
some assets to Old Mutual Asset Managers (UK) (OMAM(UK)), and commission and other income of
£70 million reduced by 10%. Adverse markets and the exit of unprofitable client relationships were
largely responsible for the reduction in closing funds under management from £17.4 billion at 31
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December 2001 to £12.0 billion at 31 December 2002. Included in this reduction is £1.1 billion of funds
transferred from Gerrard Investment Funds (GIF) to OMAM(UK) at the beginning of 2002.

Business development

Gerrard has undergone considerable structural change in 2002. Cost savings anticipated from
integration have been realised, with back office operations restructured and positioned in low cost
locations. The business has also undergone a branch rationalisation programme, which has reduced
the number of offices from thirty-one to twenty. Employment-related costs have reduced by 20%, with
headcount approaching 1,200 compared with 1,400 at the beginning of 2002,

Qutlook

Gerrard will continue with its wealth management strategy by improving the investment choices and
stockbroking services available to clients, and developing distribution through complementary financial
planning and private banking offerings.

Fund Management

Financial and fund performance

Operating losses from the Group’s UK and Rest of World fund management businesses of £2 million
compared to an operating profit of £6 million in 2001. Included in these results are OMAM(UK), Old
Mutual Asset Managers (Bermuda) and GNI Fund Management (GNI FM). The decrease in operating
profit contribution arose primarily from market-related declines in funds under management, and one-
off costs of integrating the GIF business into OMAM(UK).

OMAM( UK) - business development

OMAM(UK) continued to make good progress during the year, particularly in the difficult market
environment, and achieved net fund inflows of £82 million from external clients. OMAM(UK) launched
the UK Select Mid Cap and Large Cap Funds in 2002, following the success of its Smaller Companies
Fund launched in 2001. Between them, these three raised £156 million of new funds in 2002.
OMAM(UK) also had considerable success with its Corporate Bond Fund, which raised £100 million of
new funds during the year and has been top in its sector since its launch in 2000. Performance in the
three equity funds mentioned above exceeded their respective index benchmarks, resulting in top
decile performance relative to their peer group.

During 2002, OMAM(UK) successfully integrated the retail fund business of GIF under its
management and is currently in the process of rationalising the combined fund ranges of the two
businesses. OMAM(UK) has significantly reduced its cost base and has shifted its sales focus away
from advertising, brand building and promation, and closer to the point of sale.

GNI FM — business development

Following the sale of GNI, GNI FM has restructured its business, including the purchase of a new risk
management system, and now has a solid platform from which to build funds under management.
Fund performance in 2002 was strong, with all products showing positive returns.
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Other Financial Services

Financial performance

As part of the Group’s strategic focus on asset gathering and asset managment operations, the UK
broking businesses of GNI, Old Mutual Securities (OMS) and King & Shaxson Bond Brokers were all
sold in the second half of the year, for a total consideration of up to £114 million. The loss on these
disposals totalled £61 million. These businesses contributed £2 million of operating profit in 2002,
compared to £7 million in 2001.

LIFE ASSURANCE

Financial performance

Operating losses in 2002, before long term investment return, from the Group’s UK and Rest of World
life businesses of £7 million was the same as in 2001.

United Kingdom

Selestia has made a positive impact on the market in its first year since launch and obtained a life
company licence in May 2002. In November 2002, the company was awarded the Best Online
Investment Provider award at the 2002 Incisive Media Online Finance Awards, which will further
establish it as a leading IFA business solutions provider. Selestia achieved its plan to expand its IFA
network in 2002 and will focus its efforts on generating substantial business volumes from those
accounts in 2003.

Rest of Africa

Operating profit, before long term investment return, from the Group’s Rest of Africa operations was
£5 million in 2002, compared with £6 million in 2001.

India

The Group’s 26% owned joint venture life assurance company in India, OM Kotak Mahindra, has
continued to make satisfactory progress in 2002. OM Kotak Mahindra increased its agency force to
approximately 3,500 agents in 2002 from 1,000 in 2001, expanded its product range and now
operates a total of twenty-seven offices.
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Operating and Financial Review (continuéd)

GROUP FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating profit and earnings per share

The Group delivered solid results in 2002, despite turbulence in the equity markets and currency
volatility. Significant movements in both the average and year end exchange rates impacted operating
earnings and embedded value per share. Operating profit on ordinary activities before tax of £431
million in 2002, increased significantly from £81 million in 2001, the latter including goodwill
impairment of £500 million. Basic earnings per share were 4.3p in 2002 compared with a loss per
share of 7.4p in 2001. Operating profit' of £724 million decreased by 15% from £856 million in 2001.
Operating earnings per share' were 11.3p compared with 12.1p (restated to reflect Financial Reporting
Standard 19) in 2001. The weakening of the average Rand:Sterling exchange rate from R12.39 in
2001 to R15.79 in 2002 is the principal factor that adversely affected the Group’s results, reducing
operating earnings per share by 3.4p. The impact of the strong year end rate for the Rand benefited
Sterling achieved profits shareholders’ funds, although it has also generated transiation losses in the
Group’s banking subsidiary, Nedcor.

Achieved profits

The Association of British Insurers (ABI) issued guidance for achieved profits reporting in December
2001. The Group has adopted achieved profits for supplementary reporting in these results, replacing
the embedded value information provided in previous years. The basis of preparation and reporting

- within the primary financial statements, and the actuarial assumptions within the supplementary
reporting for prior periods, are unchanged.

The Group’s achieved profits before tax and minority interests of £862 million decreased by 18% from
the £1,048 million in 2001. Achieved profits per share of 14.1p declined from 15.4p. The achieved
profits shareholders’ funds of £3,426 million at 31 December 2002 increased by 12% during the year
from £3,067 million at 31 December 2001. Embedded value (adjusted for market value uplift of listed
subsidiaries) of £3,928 million at 31 December 2002 also increased by 12% from £3,522 million at 31
December 2001.

The achieved profits for 2002 are presented in these results as supplementary information,
commencing on page 45.

Acquisitions |

Nedcor acquired BoE with effect from 2 July 2002. The total consideration of £485 million (R7.7 billion)
was financed with cash of £391 million (R6.2 billion) and equity of £84 million (R1.3 billion), with
additional costs directly associated with the acquisition of £10 million (RO.2 billion). After fair value and
accounting policy alignment adjustments, goodwill arising on the acquisition of BoE was £214 million
(R3.4 billion), giving a price to book ratio of approximately 1.8. Pre-tax integration costs of £14 million
(R227 million) have been accounted for in the Group’s profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2002. :

Disposals

In the USA, the Group sold NWQ for cash proceeds of £77 million ($120 million) on 1 August2002
and, in accordance with its planned disposal programme, a further four small US affiliates were

7Operating profit is based on a long term investment return, before goodwill amortisation and impairment, write-down of
investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc, Nedcor restructuring and integration costs and non-operating items. Operating
earnings per share are stated on the same basis, but after tax and minority interests.
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

disposed of during 2002. The total consideration received was £125 million ($197 million), resulting in
an after-tax loss on disposal of £3 million ($5 million). The disposal of a further two affiliates in 2003
has been announced. Although these sales were earnings dilutive, they strengthened the Group’s
capital position, allowing it to focus on core businesses.

The Group also disposed of its non-core UK businesses of GNI, Old Mutual Securities and King &
Shaxson Bond Brokers for a total cash consideration of £106 million. The consideration for the sale of
Old Mutual Securities exciudes a deferred amount of up to £8 million to be determined on an earn-out
basis over three years. The loss on sale of these businesses totalled £61 million.

In January 2002, the Group disposed of Old Mutual international (Isle of Man) Limited, an offshore life
assurance business, for a cash consideration of £36 million, resuiting in a profit on disposal of £20
million.

Capital

Shareholders’ capital has been affected during the year by a number of factors. In May 2002, capital
of £39 million was raised through an issue of new shares made at the same time as the St Paul group
placed its shares in Old Mutual, acquired as part of the purchase of Fidelity & Guaranty Life. Secondly,
shareholders’ capital benefited by £457 million from a strengthening, from R17.43 to R13.81 between
31 December 2001 and 31 December 2002, in the Rand:Sterling exchange rate.

The Group continues to manage its capital position prudently, ensuring that capital allocated to
subsidiaries is strictly monitored. The Group has accessed debt and credit markets to secure an
attractive funding structure with gearing (debt® over debt? plus equity shareholders’ funds) at year end
of 30%, an improvement over the 2001 year end level of 35%.

The solvency ratios of the Group’s key businesses are as follows: excess assets equivalent to 2.3 and
2.5 times statutory capital at its South African and US life businesses respectively; a capital adequacy
ratio of 11.0% at Nedcor and a solvency margin in excess of 60% at Mutual & Federal. In all cases,
these are comfortably above the minimum statutory requirements.

At the end of 2002 a review was undertaken of the carrying value of the UK and US asset
management businesses that were purchased in 2000. Despite the reduction in the levels of equity
markets worldwide, the directors were satisfied that no further write-down of these assets was
required.

Debt and debt facilities

During 2002, the Group continued to diversify its sources of funding and successfully launched its first
Eurobond issue, raising €400 million. Its Euro commercial paper programme, rated P1 and F1 by
Moody’s Investor Service and Fitch Ratings respectively, was increased in size from £300 million to
£600 million. In addition, the Group negotiated new committed syndicated and bilateral bank facilities
totalling $660 million.

These actions, together with existing internal resources, provided the Group with improved financial
flexibility.

2 Debt from the Group’s insurance and asset management activities, net of cash and short term investments which are
immediately available to repay debt.
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Operating and Financial Review (continued)

Foreign exchange

Substantial proportions of the Group’s operations are conducted in currencies other than Sterling.
Where possible, the Group seeks to reduce its balance sheet exposure the by borrowing in
appropriate currencies directly or through currency hedging transactions. This was the case with the
Group’s €400 million Eurobond issue, which was immediately swapped into a $349 million fixed rate
debt liability. In total, 90% of the Group’s debt is US Dollar denominated, which helps to hedge the
Group's US Dollar assets.

Taxation

The Group’s effective tax rate (based on the tax charge as a proportion of smoothed operating profit)
of 26.9% represents a decrease from 29.2% (restated for the adoption of FRS 19) in 2001. The rate is
3% lower than the standard tax rate in the Group’s primary business regions of 30%, mainly due to the
continuing positive effect of low taxed income earned by the Group’s businesses in South Africa. The
rate also benefited from a reduction in Secondary Tax on Companies in South Africa. The Group
expects the rate to trend upwards in the coming year, reflecting the impact of high US tax rates,
additional South African Secondary Tax on Companies, and a reduction in Nedcor's proportion of low
taxed income.

Long term investment return

In accordance with the UK ABI Statement of Recommended Practice and, having considered past
experience and future expectations with regard to equity investment performance, the long term
investment return rate assumption used in calculating the smoothed earnings of the Group’s South
African life and general insurance businesses for 2002 is unchanged at 14%. The return earned by
assets, mainly bonds, backing the Group's US life business’s liabilities has been smoothed with
reference to the actual yield earned by the portfolio, which indicates a long term rate of return of 6.5%.

Dividend

The Board recommends a final dividend of 3.1p per share, which will bring the total dividend per share
for the year to 4.8p. The proposed dividend is covered 2.4 times by operating earnings per share
(2001: 2.5 times), reflecting the fall in operating earnings compared to the prior year.

The dividend, which is subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting on 16 May
2003, will be paid on 30 May 2003 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 22 April
2003 (the record date) for all the exchanges where Old Mutual plc’s shares are listed. The local
currency equivalents of the proposed dividend for shareholders on the South African, Malawi and
Zimbabwe branch registers and the Namibian section of the principal register will be determined using
exchange rates on 3 April 2003 and will be announced by the Company on 4 April 2003. The
Company's shares will trade ex dividend on the African exchanges from the opening of business on 14
April 2003 and on the London Stock Exchange from the opening of business on 16 April 2003.

Julian Roberts
Group Finance Director
24 February 2003
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The financial information in this document does not constitute the Company’s statutory accounts for the year ended 31

December 2002 but is derived from those accounts. Statutory accounts for 2001 have been delivered to the Registrar of

Companies, and those for 2002 will be delivered foliowing the Company’s Annual General Meeting. The auditors have

reported on those accounts: their reports were unqualified and did not contain statements under Section 237 (2) or (3) of the

Companies Act 1985.

Summary Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

for the year ended 31 December 2002

The following table summarises the Group's results reported in the profit and loss accounts. This summary does not form part
of the statutory financial statements. The directors' view is that operating earnings per share derived from operating profit or
loss based on a long term investment return and before goodwill amortisation and impairment, write-down of investment in
Dimension Data Holdings plc and Nedcor restructuring and integration costs, provides a better indication of the underlying

performance of the Group.

£m Rm
Year to Year (0 Year to Yearto
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2002 2001 2002 2001
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
South Africa
Technical result 208 249 3,283 3,085
Long term investment return 135 148 2,131 1,830
Life assurance 3(b)(iii) 343 397 5,414 4,915
Asset management 3(c)i) 28 37 441 458
Banking 3(d}M)
Acquired 32 - 503 -
Continuing 133 280 2,102 3,593
General insurance 3(e)ti) 35 46 556 570
571 770 9,016 9,536
United States
Life assurance 3(b)(iii) 83 13 1,310 161
Asset management 3(e)i) 95 116 1,500 1,437
178 129 2,810 1,598
United Kingdom and Rest of World
Life assurance (b)) (3) (2) (47) (25)
Asset management 3(e)i) 2 (3) 3 (38)
Banking )y 56 79 884 979
55 74 868 916
804 973 12,694 12,050
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) () (22) (29) (347) (359)
Debt service costs (58) (67) (916) (830)
Write-down of strategic investments - 21) - (260)
Qperating profit based on a long term investment return before goodwill
amortisation and impairment, write-down of investment in Dimension
Data Holdings plc and Nedcor restructuring and integration costs 724 856 11,431 10,601
Goodwill amortisation and impairment (120) (632) (1,895) (7.832)
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc 4 (68) (269) (1,080) (3,334)
Nedcor restructuring and integration costs 3(d)(ii) (14) - (227) -
Short term fluctuations in investment return (91) 126 (1,439) 1,561
Operating profit on ordinary activities before tax 431 81 6,790 996
Non-operating items 8(b) (6) - (88) -
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 425 81 6,702 996
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 5(a) (224) (319) (3,535) (3,048)
Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after tax 201 (238) 3,167 (2,952)
Minority interests (44) (26) (695) (322)
Profit / (loss) for the financial year 157 (264) 2,472 (3,274)
Dividends paid and proposed (176) (172) (2,556) (2,606)
Retained loss for the financial year (19) (436) (84) (5,880)
Earnings per share p c
Operating earnings per share after tax and minority interests based on a long
term investment return before goodwill amortisation and impairment, write-
down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc and Nedcor restructuring
and integration costs 2 11.3 121 179.0 149.1
Basic earnings / (loss) per share 2 4.3 (7.4) 67.4 (92.2)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share 2 4.3 (7.4) 67.4 (92.2)
Dividend per share (Rand dividend per share indicative only for 2002) 4.8 4.8 69.6 72.3
Weighted average number of shares — millions 3,670 3,550 3,670 3,550
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Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 31 December 2002

£m Rm

Year to Yearto Year to Year to

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

{Restated) (Restated)

Proft / (loss) for the financial year 157 (264) 2,472 (3,274)

Foreign exchange movements 295 (964) (5,110) 4,697

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 452 (1,228) (2,638) 1,423
Prior period adjustment (41) (503)
Total recognised gains and losses recognised since last annual report 411 (3,141)

Reconciliation of Movements in Consolidated Equity Shareholders’ Funds
for the year ended 31 December 2002

£m Rm

Year to Year to Year to Year to

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

{Restated} (Restated)

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 452 (1,228) (2,638) 1,423

Dividends paid and proposed (176) (172) (2,556) (2,606)

276 (1,400) (5,194) (1,183)

Issue of new capital . 39 - 619 -

Issue of new capital in connection with the acquisition of Fidelity & Guaranty Life - 203 - 2,690

Shares issued under option schemes 1 5 16 61
Proceeds from sale of shares previously held to saisfy claims and errors on

demutualisation . 3 - 37

Net increase / (decrease) in equity shareholders’ funds 316 (1,189) (4,559) 1,605

Equity shareholders’ funds at the beginning of the year 2,470 3,618 43,045 40,837

Change to shareholders’ funds resulting from change in accounting policy - 41 - 503

Equity shareholders’ funds at the end of the year 2,786 2,470 38,486 43,045

Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 31 December 2002

£m Rm
At At At At
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
Notes 2002 2001 2002 2001
Intangible assets
Goodwill 7 1,598 1,580 22,075 27,537
Insurance and other assets
Investments
Ltand and buildings 600 586 8,288 10,213
Other financial investments 18,902 16,714 261,114 291,301
19,502 17,300 269,402 301,514
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 4,317 4,415 59,635 76,947
3(h) 23,819 21,715 329,037 378,461
Reinsurers' share of technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 21 9 290 157
Long term business provision 305 421 4,213 7,337
Claims outstanding 44 33 608 575
370 463 5111 8,069
Debtors
Debtors arising from direct insurance operations 179 147 2,472 2,562
Debtors arising from reinsurance operations 12 6 166 108
Other debtors 238 8,024 3,287 139,847
429 8,177 5,925 142,514
Other assets
Tangible fixed assets 97 102 1,340 1,778
Cash at bank and in hand 565 475 7,805 8,279
Investment in own shares 115 85 1,589 1,481
Present value of acquired in-force business 255 325 3,523 5,664
Other assets 378 308 5,222 5,368
1,410 1,295 19,479 22,570
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 128 99 1,768 1,725
Deferred acquisition costs 284 66 3,924 1,150
Other prepayments and accrued income 153 100 2,114 1,743
565 265 7,806 4,618
Total insurance and other assets 26,593 31,915 367,358 556,232
Banking assets
Cash and balances at central banks 1,202 630 16,607 10,980
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 1,085 653 14,987 11,372
Loans and advances to banks 1,228 649 16,963 11,313
Loans and advances to customers 12,854 7,797 177,566 135,884
Debt securities 1,061 725 14,647 12,648
Equity securities 965 225 13,331 3,921
Interest in associated undertakings 124 118 1,713 2,057
Tangible fixed assets 158 111 2,182 1,935
Land and buildings 131 80 1,806 1,392
Other assets 2,095 62 28,941 1,080
Prepayments and accrued income 474 259 6,548 4,517
Total banking assets 21,377 11,309 295,291 197,099
Total assets 49,568 44,804 684,724 780,868
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
at 31 December 2002 (continued)

£m Rm
At At At At
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
Notes 2002 2001 2002 2001
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 378 374 5,222 6,517
Share premium account 552 516 7,625 8,993
Merger reserve 184 184 2,542 3,205
Profit and loss account 1,672 1,396 23,097 24,330
Equity shareholders' funds 2,786 2,470 38,486 43,045
Minority interests
Equity 783 565 10,816 9,847
Non-equity 144 - 1,992 -
927 565 12,808 9,847
Subordinated liabilities 18 22 249 383
Insurance and other liabilities
Technical provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 79 54 1,091 941
Long term business provision 17,241 14,154 238,169 246,684
Claims outstanding 335 272 4,628 4,741
17,655 14,480 243,888 252,366
Technical provisions for linked liabilities 4,317 4,415 59,635 76,947
Provisions for other risks and charges 486 341 6,714 5,944
Creditors
Creditors arising from direct insurance operations 326 401 4,503 6,989
Creditors arising from reinsurance operations 7 7 97 122
Other creditors including tax and social security 1,456 10,078 20,110 175,646
Amounts owed to credit institutions 8 767 897 10,596 15,633
Convertible loan stock 8(a(i) 404 439 5,581 7,651
2,960 11,822 40,887 206,041
Accruals and deferred income 184 234 2,542 4,079
Total insurance and other liabilities 25,602 31,292 353,666 545,377
Banking liabilities
Deposits by banks 2,110 1,862 29,148 32,454
Customer accounts 12,070 6,802 166,735 118,550
Debt securities in issue 2,266 986 31,303 17,183
Other liabilities 3,149 501 43,487 8,729
Provisions for liabilities and charges 105 84 1,450 1,471
Subordinated liabilities 521 220 7,197 3,829
Convertible loan stock 8(a)(ii) 14 - 195 -
Total banking liabilities 20,235 10,455 279,515 182,216
Total liabilities 49,568 44,804 684,724 780,868
Memorandum items
Commitments 754 431 10,415 7,514
Contingent liabilities 1,382 798 19,091 13,908
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2002

£m Rm
Year to Year to Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2002 2001 2002 2001
Operating activities
Net cash inflow from insurance and other operating activities 858 851 13,537 10,545
Net cash inflow from banking operating activities 349 13 5,510 163
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,207 864 19,047 10,708
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (93) (183) (1,468) (2,268)
Total tax paid (132) (269) (2,084) {3,334)
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (26) (152) (411) (1,884)
Net cash outflow from acquisitions and disposals (160) (316) (2,526) (3,916)
Equity dividends paid (175) (167) (2,763) (2,070)
Net cash inflow / {(outflow) before financing activities 621 (223) 9,795 (2,764)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 260 676 4,108 8,377
Net cash inflow of the Group excluding long term business 881 453 13,903 5,613
Cash flows relating to insurance and other activities were invested as follows:
Increase in cash holdings 41 63 647 781
Increase in net portfolio investments 483 543 7,631 6,729
524 606 8,278 7,510
Cash flows relating to banking activities were invested as follows:
Increase / (decrease) in cash and balances at central banks 357 (153) 5,625 (1,897)
Net cash inflow of the Group excluding long term business 881 453 13,903 5,613

The cash flows presented in this statement exclude all cash flows relating to policyholders’ funds for the long term business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002

1 FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The information contained in these financial statements is expressed in both Sterling and South African Rand. This is in order
both to meet the legal requirements of the UK Companies Act 1985 and to provide the users of the accounts in South Africa
with illustrative information.

The principal exchange rates used to translate the operating results, assets and liabilities of key foreign business segments
to Sterling are:

Rand uUs$

Year to Year to Year to Year to

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

Profit and loss account (average rate) 15.7878 12.3923 1.5030 1.4405
Balance sheet (closing rate) 13.8141 17.4286 1.6105 1.4542

Foreign currency revenue transactions are translated at average exchange rates for the year. Foreign currency assets and
liabilities are translated at year end exchange rates. Exchange differences arising from the transiation of net investments in
foreign subsidiary undertakings are taken to the consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses. Exchange
differences arising on the translation of foreign integrated operations are taken through the non-technical account. Other
exchange differences are included in the profit and Joss account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

2 EARNINGS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated based upon the profit or loss after tax attributable to equity shareholders after the
amortisation and impairment of goodwill arising on acquisitions, the write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings
plc, Nedcor restructuring and integration costs, short term fluctuations in investment return and non-operating items.

The directors' view is that operating earnings per share derived from operating profit or loss based on a long term investment
return and before goodwill amortisation and impairment, write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc, Nedcor
restructuring and integration costs and non-operating items provides a better indication of the underlying performance of the
Group. A table reconciling profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after tax and minority interests to this underlying measure of
operating earnings is included below.

£m Rm
Year to Year lo Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2002 2001 2002 2001
Notes {Restated) (Reslated)
Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after tax and minority interests 157 (264) 2,472 (3,274)
Goodwill amortisation net of minority interests 104 120 1,646 1,487
Goodwill impairment - 500 - 6,196
Write-down of investmeént in Dimension Data Holdings plc net of tax and
minority interests 4 29 144 467 1,788
Nedcor restructuring and integration costs net of tax and minority interests 3(d)i) 7 - 104 -
Short term fluctuations in investment returns net of tax and minority interests 75 (73) 1,192 (905)
Non-operating items net of tax 8(b) 44 - 688 -
Operating earnings after tax and minority interests based on a long term
investment return before goodwill amortisation and impairment, write-
down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc and Nedcor
restructuring and integration costs 416 427 6,569 5,292
p c
Basic earnings / (loss) per share 4.3 (7.4) 67.4 (92.2)
Goodwill amortisation net of minority interests 2.8 3.4 44.9 41.9
Goodwill impairment . - 14.1 - 174.5
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc net of tax and
minority interests 0.8 4.1 12.7 50.3
Nedcor restructuring and integration costs net of tax and minority interests 0.2 - 2.8 -
Short term fluctuations in investment returns net of tax and minority interests 2.0 2.1) 32,5 (25.4)
Non-operating items net of tax 1.2 - 18.7 -
Operating earnings per share after tax and minority interests based on a
long term investment return before goodwill amortisation and
impairment, write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc
and Nedcor restructuring and integration costs 11.3 12.1 179.0 149.1

Basic earings per share is calculated by reference to the profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after tax and minority interests of
£157 million (R2,472 million) for the year ended 31 December 2002 (2001: loss £264 million (R3,274 million)} and a weighted
average number of shares in issue of 3,670 million (2001: 3,550 million). This is calculated after taking into account shares
held by Employee Share Ownership Plans (ESOPs), which have waived their rights to dividends.

The diluted earnings per share calculation reflects the impact of the shares in the ESOP Trusts, the US Dollar Guaranteed
Convertible Bond and potential issue of shares to satisfy the Pilgrim Baxter deferred consideration.

316 million (2001: 316 million) Old Mutual plc shares held by policyholders’ funds are included in the weighted average
number of shares used in the earnings per share calculation, reflecting the policyholders' economic interest in these shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

£m Rm
3(a) Summary of operating profit on South United Reusfog; South United Reus}:o%
ordinary activities before tax Notes Africa States World Total Africa States World Total
Year to 31 December 2002
Life assurance 3(b)iii) 343 83 (3) 423 5,414 1,310 47) 6,677
Asset management 3(c)() 28 95 2 125 441 1,500 31 1,972
Banking 3(6)i) 165 - 56 221 2,605 - 884 3,489
General insurance business 3(e)(i) 35 - - 35 556 - - 556
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) 3 - - (22) (22) - - (347) (347)
Debt service costs : - - (58) (58) - - (916) (916)
Operating result based on a long term
investment return 571 178 (25) 724 9,016 2,810 (395) 11,431
Goodwill amortisation (31) (70) (19) (120) (490) (1,105)  (300) (1,895)
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings pic 4 (68) - - (68) (1,080) - - (1,080)
Nedcor restructuring and integration costs 3(d)i) (14) - - (14) (227) - . (227)
Short term fluctuations in investment return (292) 181 20 (91) (4,613) 2,858 316 (1,439)
Operating profit on ordinary activities
before tax 166 289 (24) 431 2,606 4,563 (379) 6,790
Analysed as:
Life assurance 93 258 (17) 334 1,464 4,073 (268) 5,269
Asset management 28 31 (13) 46 441 490 (206) 725
Banking 53 - 52 105 824 - 821 1,645
General insurance business (8) - - (8) (123) - - (123)
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) - - 12 12 - - 190 190
Debt service costs - - (58) (58) - - {916) {916)
Operating profit on ordinary activities
before tax 166 289 (24) 431 2,606 4,563 (379) 6,790
Year to 31 December 2001
Life assurance 3(bYii) 397 13 2) 408 4,915 161 (25) 5,051
Asset management 3(e)) 37 116 (3) 150 458 1,437 (38) 1,857
Banking 3(d)(i) 290 - 79 369 3,593 - 979 4,572
General insurance business 3(e)) 46 - - 46 570 - - 570
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) ) 12 - (41) (29) 149 - (508) (359)
Debt service costs - (3) (64) (67) - (37) (793) (830)
Write-down of strategic investments 3 - - (21) (21) - - (260) {(260)
Operating result based on a long term
investment return 782 126 (52) 856 9,685 1,561 (645) 10,601
Goodwill amortisation (27) (78) (27) (132) (334) (966) (336) (1,636)
Goodwill impairment - (335) (165) (500) - (4,151) (2,045) (6,196)
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings plc 4 (269) - - (269) (3,334) - - (3,334)
Short term fluctuations in investment return 77 31 18 126 954 384 223 1,561
Operating profit on ordinary activities
before tax 563 (256) (226) 81 6,971 (3,172) (2,803) 996
Analysed as:
Life assurance 464 42 4 510 5,745 520 49 6,314
Asset management 37 (295) (193) (451) 458 (3,655) (2,393) (5,590)
Banking 4) - 77 73 (50) - 953 903
General insurance business 88 - - 88 1,090 - - 1,090
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) (22) - 29) (51) (272) - (359) (631)
Debt service costs - (3) (64) (67) - (37) (793) (830)
Write-down of strategic investments - - (21) (21) - - (260) (260)
Operating profit on ordinary activities .
before tax 563 (256) (226) 81 6,971 (3,172) (2,803) 996
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

£m Rm
UK & UK &
South United Rest of South United Rest of
3(b) Life assurance Africa States World Total Africa States World Totai
(i) Gross premiums written
Year to 31 December 2002
Individual business
Single 610 2,633 104 3,347 9,631 41,562 1,637 52,830
Recurring 612 146 49 807 9,662 2,312 779 12,753
1,222 2,779 153 4,154 19,293 43,874 2,416 65,583
Group business
Single 647 - 9 656 10,215 - 142 10,357
Recurring 241 - 9 250 3,805 - 142 3,947
888 - 18 906 14,020 - 284 14,304
Total gross premiums 2,110 2,779 171 5,060 33,313 43,874 2,700 79,887
Year to 31 December 2001 ‘
Individual business
Single 854 578 97 1,628 10,583 7,163 1,202 18,948
Recurring 757 78 87 922 9,381 967 1,078 11,426
1,611 656 184 2,451 19,964 8,130 2,280 30,374
Group business
Single 598 - 13 811 7,411 - 161 7,572
Recurring 280 - 29 309 3,470 - 359 3,829
878 - 42 920 10,881 - 520 11,401

Total gross premiums 2,489 656 226 3,371 - 30,845 8,130 2,800 41775

Business transacted with South African residents in terms of their personal offshore allowances is conducted by the Group's
offshore companies and is therefore disclosed under the Rest of World segment.

(ii) Gross new business premiums written
Year to 31 December 2002

Individual business

Single 610 2,633 104 3,347 9,631 41,562 1,637 52,830
Recurring 115 73 11 199 1,808 1,154 175 3,137
725 2,706 115 3,546 11,439 42,716 1,812 55,967

Group business
Single . 647 - 9 656 10,215 - 142 10,357
Recurring 19 - 1 20 296 - 11 307
666 - 10 676 10,511 - 153 10,664
Total gross new business premiums written 1,391 2,706 125 4,222 21,950 42,716 1,965 66,631
Annual premium equivalent 260 336 23 618 4,089 5,310 364 9,763

Year to 31 December 2001

Individual business

Single 854 578 g7 1,529 10,583 7,163 1,202 18,948
Recurring 159 26 11 196 1,970 322 136 2,428
1,013 604 108 1,725 12,553 7,485 1,338 21,376

Group business
Single 598 - 13 611 7,411 - 161 7,572
Recurring 20 - 1 21 248 - 12 260
618 - 14 632 7,659 - 173 7,832
Total gross new business premiums written 1,631 604 122 2,357 20,212 7,485 1,511 29,208
Annual premium equivalent 324 84 23 431 4,017 1,038 284 5,339

Annual premium equivalent is defined as one tenth of single premiums plus recurring premiums.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

£m Rm
UK & UK &
i . South United Rest of South United Rest of
3(b) Life assurance continued Africa Slates World Total Africa States world Total
(iii) Life assurance operating result
Year to 31 December 2002
Individual business 149 83 (8) 224 2,352 1,310 (126) 3,536
Group business 59 - 1 60 931 - 16 947
Life assurance technical resuit 208 83 7) 284 3,283 1,310 (110) 4,483
Long term investment return 135 - 4 139 2131 - 63 2,194
Life assurance operating result before short
term fluctuations in investment return 343 83 (3) 423 5,414 1,310 (47) 6,677
Year to 31 December 2001
Individual business 174 13 8) 179 2,152 161 (99) 2,214
Group business 75 - 1 76 933 - 12 945
Life assurance technical result 249 13 (7) 255 3,085 161 (87) 3,159
Long term investment return 148 - 5 153 1,830 - 62 1,892
Life assurance operating result before short
term fluctuations in investment return 397 13 (2) 408 4,915 161 (25) 5,051
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

£m Rm
Year to Year to Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
3(c) Asset management Notes 2002 2001 2002 2001
(i) Analysis of operating result
Fund management worldwide
South Africa
Old Mutual Asset Managers 13 16 205 198
Old Mutual Unit Trusts 3 11 47 136
Other 3 1 47 12
19 28 299 346
United States )
Old Mutual Asset Managers 3(c)(ii) 31 38 490 471
Pilgrim Baxter 3(c)(ii) 18 29 284 359
Other Old Mutual US affiliates 3(c)ii) 46 49 726 607
95 116 1,500 1,437
United Kingdom and Rest of World (2) 6 (32) 74
112 150 1,767 1,857
Private client UK — Gerrard
Gross profit 3 2 47 25
Profit on disposal of current investments 6 - 95 .
Integration costs (5) (12) (79) (149)
4 (10) 63 (124)
Other financial services
South Africa 9 9 142 112
United Kingdom and Rest of World - 1 . 12
9 10 142 124
Asset management operating result before goodwill amortisation
and impairment 125 150 1,972 1,857
Analysed as:
South Africa 28 37 441 458
United States 95 116 1,500 1,437
United Kingdom and Rest of World 2 (3) 31 (38)
Asset management operating result before goodwill amortisation
and impairment 125 150 1,972 1,857
£m Rm
OMAM Pitgrim Other OMAM Pilgrim Other
(USs) Baxter Affiliates Total {Us) Baxter Affiliates Total
(ii) Old Mutual (US) Holdings
Year to 31 December 2002
Revenue 123 50 200 373 1,942 789 3,158 5,889
Expenses {92) (32) (154) (278) (1,452) (505) (2,432) (4,389)
Asset management operating result before
goodwiil amortisation 31 18 46 95 490 284 726 1,500
Year to 31 December 2001
Revenue 147 85 219 451 1,822 1,053 2,713 5,588
Expenses (109) (56) (170) (335) (1,351) (694) (2,106) (4,151)
Asset management operating result before :
goodwill amortisation and impairment 38 29 49 116 471 359 607 1,437




Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

£m Rm
South UK & Rest South UK & Rest

3(d) Banking Africa of World Total Africa of World Total
(i) Banking operating result
Year to 31 December 2002
Interest receivable 1,372 142 1,514 21,661 2,242 23,903
Interest payable (1,003) (108) (1,111) (15,835) (1,705) (17,540)
Net interest income ‘ 369 34 403 5,826 537 6,363
Dividend income 11 - 1 174 - 174
Fees and commissions receivable 261 45 306 4,121 710 4,831
Fees and commissions payable (9) 2) “n (142) (32) (174)
Other operating income ' 112 21 133 1,768 332 2,100
Total operating income 744 98 842 11,747 1,547 13,294
Specific and general provisions charge (87) {1) (88) (1,374) (16) (1,390)
Net income 657 97 754 10,373 1,531 11,904
Operating expenses (497) (46) (543) (7,847) (726) {8,573)
Banking operating result before goodwiil amortisation,
share of associated undertakings’ profit, write-down of
investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc and Nedcor
restructuring and integration costs 160 51 211 2,526 805 3,331
Share of associated undertakings' profit ‘ 5 5 10 79 79 158
Banking operating result before goodwill amortisation,
write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings
plc and Nedcor restructuring and integration costs 165 56 221 2,605 884 3,489
Year to 31 December 2001
Net interest income 386 43 429 4,783 5633 5,316
Non-interest revenue 413 55 468 5,118 681 5,799
Total operating income 799 a8 897 9,901 1,214 11,115
Specific and general provisions charge (118) - (118) (1,462) - (1,462)
Net income 681 98 779 8,439 1,214 9,653
Operating expenses (399) (26) (425) " (4,945) (322) (5,267)
Banking operating result before goodwill amortisation,
share of associated undertakings’ profit and write-down
of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc 282 72 354 3,494 892 4,386
Share of associated undertakings' profit 8 7 15 99 87 186
Banking operating result before goodwill amortisation
and write-down of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings pic . 290 79 369 3,593 979 4,572

Operating expenses includes translation losses of £64 million (R1,011 million). Non-interest revenue in 2001 includes
exceptional revenue of £36 million (R441 million).

Specific and general provisions charge for the year includes the release of an exceptional provision of £25 million (R400
million). The exceptional provision included in the specific and general provisions charge for 2001 was £32 million (R400

million).

There are no banking operations in the United States.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

£m Rm

Year to Year to

31 Dec 31 Dec

3(d) Banking continued ‘ 2002 2002
(ii) Nedcor restructuring and integration costs

Costs before tax and minority interests 14 227

Tax (1) (23)

Costs after tax and before minority interests 13 204

Minority interests {6) {100)

Costs after tax and minority interests 7 104

In 2002, one-off merger and restructuring costs of £13 million (R204 million) after tax have been charged to the profit and
loss account. This figure includes £5 million {R86 million) for Nedcor's restructuring and integration costs in connection with
the acquisition of BoE and £8 million (R118 million) for the closure and restructuring costs of Permanent Bank’s deposit-
taking activities and infrastructure, which are being merged with Old Mutual Bank.

Although these costs are considered significant to the operating resuits of the Group, they do not fall under the definition of

exceptional items as described in Financial Reporting Standard 3 and as such are classified as operating activities for
statutory reporting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

(iii) Other technical income

£m Rm
Year to Year to Year to Year to
. i . 31Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
3(e) Other technical income, net of reinsurance 2002 2001 2002 2001
(i) General insurance technical account
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Premiums written, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written 355 394 5,603 4,882
Outward reinsurance premiums (45) (43) (717) (533)
310 351 4,886 4,349
Change in the provision for unearned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross amount (13) 2) (212) (25)
Reinsurers’ share 8 1 132 12
{5) (1) {80) (13)
305 350 4,806 4,336
Allocated investment return transferred from the non-technical account 35 41 554 508
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid
Gross amount (234) (290) (3,682) (3,594)
Reinsurers’ share 18 33 275 409
(216) (257) (3,407) (3,185)
“Change in the provision for claims, net of reinsurance
Gross amount (20) (4) (312) (50)
Reinsurers’ share 7 1 112 12
{13) (3) (200) (38)
(229) (260) {3,607) (3,223)
Net operating expenses (76) (85) {1,197) (1,051)
General insurance operating result before short term fluctuations in
investment returns 35 46 556 570
£m Rm
Earned Claims Operating resuit Earned Claims  Operating result
premiums incurred based on a long premiums incurred  based on a long
net of net of term investment net of netof  terminvestment
reinsurance reinsurance return reinsurance reinsurance return
(ii) General insurance result by class of business
Year to 31 December 2002
Commercial 125 89 3 1,968 1,400 40
Corporate 15 11 (2) 234 180 (28)
Personal lines 145 111 (1) 2,284 1,747 (8)
Risk financing 20 18 - 320 280 (2)
305 229 - 4,806 3,607 2
Long term investment return 35 554
35 556
Year to 31 December 2001
Commercial 134 98 1 1,659 1,212 8
Corporate . 17 14 - 210 167 -
Personal lines 177 130 4 2,196 1,615 54
Risk financing 22 18 - 271 229 -
350 260 5 4,336 3,223 62
Long term investment return 41 508
48 570

Other technical income principally consists of fees earned in respect of South African policyholders’ funds and fees earned for healthcare

administration.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

£m Rm
. . Y Y, Y
3(f) Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) and write-down of 21 Do it o Do Jatiieg
strategic investments 2002 2001 2002 2001
Long term investment return credited to operating result - 12 - 149
Other income 13 - 205 -
Net corporate expenses (35) (41) (552) (508)
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) (22) (29) (347) (359)
Write-down of strategic investments - (21) - (260)
E£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
3(g) Net assets Africa States of World Total Africa States of Warld Total
At 31 December 2002 '
Life assurance 1,095 ' 851 7 2,017 15,126 11,756 981 27,863
Asset management 100 1,005 322 1,427 1,381 13,883 4,449 19,713
Banking } 541 - 89 630 7,473 - 1,230 8,703
General insurance 78 - - 78 1,077 - - 1,077
Other {19) - (158) {(177) (261) - (2,183) (2,444)
1,795 1,856 324 3,975 24,796 25,639 4,477 54,912
Debt " (1,189) (16,426)
Net assets 2,786 38,486
At 31 December 2001
Life assurance 802 588 28 1,418 13,978 10,248 488 24714
Asset management 60 1,252 469 1,781 1,046 21,821 8,173 31,040
Banking 341 - 147 488 5,943 - 2,562 8,505
General insurance 69 - 3 72 1,203 - 52 1,255
Other 75 - (6) 69 1,307 - (109) 1,198
1,347 1,840 641 3,828 23,477 32,069 11,166 66,712
Debt (1,358) (23,667)
Net assets 2,470

-y ' BB 4

43,045

PR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS CONTINUED

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
3(h) Funds under management Africa States of World Total Africa States of World Total
At 31 December 2002
Investments including assets held
to cover linked liabilities 13,968 6,793 3,058 23,819 192,955 93,839 42,243 329,037
Unit trusts
Old Mutual Asset Managers 773 - 1,376 2,149 10,678 - 19,008 29,686
Nedcor unit trusts 633 - 712 1,345 8,744 - 9,836 18,580
Other asset management - - 11 11 - - 152 152
1,406 - 2,099 3,505 19,422 - 28,996 48,418
Third party
Old Mutual Asset Managers 3,833 - 105 3,938 52,949 - 1,450 54,399
Old Mutual Asset Managers (US) - 37,457 - 37,457 - 517,435 - 517,435
Pilgrim Baxter - 4,207 - 4,207 - 58,116 - 58,116
Old Mutual Affiliates - 24781 5,875 30,656 - 342,327 81,158 423,485
3,833 66,445 5,980 76,258 52,849 917,878 82,608 1,053,435
Private client UK - - 12,030 12,030 - . 166,184 166,184
Nedcor portfolio management 3,845 310 3,501 7,656 53,115 4,282 48,363 105,760
Other financial services 18 - 310 328 249 - 4,282 4,531
7,696 66,755 21,821 96,272 106,313 922,160 301,437 1,329,910
Total funds under management 23,070 73,548 26,978 123,596 318,690 1,015,999 372,676 1,707,365
At 31 December 2001
Investments including assets held
to cover linked liabilities 11,519 4,497 5,699 21,715 200,760 78,376 99,325 378,461
Unit trusts
Old Mutual Asset Managers 670 - 360 1,030 11,677 - 6,274 17,951
Private client UK - - 1,051 1,051 - - 18,317 18,317
Other asset management - - 159 159 - - 2,771 2,771
670 - 1,570 2,240 11,677 - 27,362 39,039
Third party
Old Mutual Asset Managers 2,783 - 401 3,184 48,504 - 6,989 55,493
Old Mutual Asset Managers (US) - 48,884 - 48,884 - 851,979 - 851,979
Pilgrim Baxter - 8,675 - 8,675 - 151,193 - 151,193
Old Mutual Affiliates - 33,595 8,081 41,676 - 585,514 140,840 726,354
2,783 91,154 8,482 102,419 48,504 1,588,686 147,829 1,785,019
Private client UK - - 16,347 16,347 - - 284,905 284,905
Other financial services 12 - 363 375 209 - 6,327 6,536
2,795 91,154 25,192 119,141 48,713 1,588,686 439,061 2,076,460
Total funds under management 14,084 95,651 32,461 143,096 261,150 1,667,062 565,748 2,493,960

Nedcor managed funds have been included in 2002 as a result of growth in this business.

Unit Trust private client UK business was transferred to Old Mutual Asset Managers in January 2002.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

4 INVESTMENT IN DIMENSION DATA HOLDINGS PLC

£m Rm
Year to Year to Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2002 2001 2002 2001
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings pic before tax and
minority interests 68 269 1,080 3,334
Tax (11) 14 (171) 171
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc before minority
interests 57 283 909 3,505
Minority interests (28) (139) (442) (1,717)
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc after tax and
minority interests 29 144 467 1,788

During 2001, an impairment in the carrying value of the Group's investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc was recognised,
reflecting a market value of R14.50 per share at 31 December 2001. A further impairment has been recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2002 hased on a closing market value of R4.02 per share. Although these events are exceptional in the
context of their significance to the Group, the losses form part of banking operating profit in the statutory financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

5 TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

£m Rm
Year to Year to Year to Year to
3t Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2002 2001 2002 2001
5(a) Analysis of tax charge (Restated) (Restated)
United Kingdom tax
UK corporation tax 40 64 632 793
Double tax relief {20) (49) (316) (607)
20 15 316 186
Overseas tax ‘
South Africa 51 48 805 594
United States : 8 3 126 384
Rest of World 1) 4 (16) 50
Secondary tax on companies (STC) 3 23 47 285
61 106 962 1,313
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (1) (7) ) {16) (87)
Current tax for the year 80 114 1,262 1,412
Current tax attributable to shareholders’ profits on long term business 38 40 596 497
Total current tax on ordinary activities 118 154 1,858 1,909
Deferred tax — non-technical account 17 88 272 1,087
Deferred tax attributable to shareholders’ profits on long term business 89 36 1,405 445
Adjustment for adoption of FRS19 - 41 - 507
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 224 319 3,535 3,948
The tax charge is analysed as follows:
Operating profit 195 250 3,082 3,094
Short term fluctuations 3 55 47 683
Investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc (11) 14 (171) 171
Nedcor restructuring and integration costs 1N - (23) -
Non-operating losses on disposal of businesses 38 - 600 ,
224 319 3,535 3,948
5(b) Reconciliation of tax charge
Tax at UK rate of 30.0 per cent. (2001: 30.0 per cent.) on profit on ordinary
activities before tax 128 24 2,011 299
Untaxed and low taxed income (including tax exempt investment return) (64) (118) (1,010) (1,462)
Disallowable expenditure 128 418 2,021 5175
STC 3 23 47 285
Movement in deferred tax (106) (165) (1,674) (2,045)
Other 29 (28) 463 (343)
Current tax charge 118 154 1,858 1,909

Comparative amounts have been restated to reflect the adoption of Financial Reporting Standard 19 "Deferred tax”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

6 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS / NON-OPERATING ITEMS

6(a) Acquisitions

(i) BoE Limited (BoE)

On 2 July 2002, the Group's banking subsidiary, Nedcor Limited, acquired 100% of the net assets of BoE, a South African
banking business, for a total consideration of £485 million (R7,697 million). This consideration comprised 10.4 million Nedcor
Limited ordinary shares valued at £84 million (R1,339 million), cash payments of £391 million (R6,199 million) and additional
costs directly associated with the acquisition of £10 million (R159 million). The table below shows the fair value of the
banking assets and liabilities acquired.

£m Rm
Book value Provisional Accounting Provisional Provisiona|
on fair value policy fair value to fair value to
acquisition adjustments alignments Group Graup
Goodwill 55 (55) - - -
Cash and balances at central banks 114 . 1 . 115 1,833
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 199 (2) - 197 3,114
Loans and advances to banks 109 - - 109 1,723
Loans and advances to customers 2,326 (24) (21) 2,281 36,162
Other investment securities 715 (2) 1 714 11,323
All other assets 393 - 12 405 6,414
Deposits by banks (580) - - (580) (9,195)
Customer accounts {1,937) - (4) (1,941) {30,761)
All other liabilities (1,017) (6) (6) (1,029) {16,285)
Net assets acquired 377 (89) (17) 271 4,328
Consideration satisfied by:
Cash 391 6,199
Ordinary shares 84 1,339
Acquisition costs 10 159
485 7,697
Goodwill arising on acquisition 214 3,369

Provisional fair value adjustments

The fair value adjustments relate to the revaluation of BoE assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition and accounting
policy alignments between BoE and Nedcor Ltd. Adjustments in respect of treasury bills and other eligible bills includes
impairment of banking bonds; loans and advances to customers have been adjusted to reflect additional provisions against
specific banking book assets; other liabilities include a provision against an onerous lease.

Pre-acquisition performance
The following shows the profit and loss accounts of BoE from the beginning of its financial year, 1 October 2001, to the date
of acquisition, and for the previous financial year ended 30 September 2001.

£m Rm

1 Oct 2001 1 Oct 2000 1 Oct 2001 1 Oct 2000

to to to to

1July 2002 30 Sep 2001 1July 2002 30 Sep 2001

Total operating income 199 329 3,148 4,033
{Loss) / profit on ordinary activities before tax (57) 36 (897) 443
Tax ' 5) (13) (81) (160)
(Loss) / profit on ordinary activities after tax {62) 23 (978) 283

Post-acquisition performance
From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2002, BoE contributed £114 million (R1,797 million) to banking operating
income, £23 million (R359 million) to operating profit before tax and minority interests.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

6 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS / NON-OPERATING ITEMS CONTINUED

6(a) Acquisitions continued

(ii) Nedcor Investment Bank Holdings Limited (NIB)

In October 2002, Nedcor Limited, a banking subsidiary of the Group, acquired the 11.6% of the share capital of Nedcor
Investment Bank Holdings Limited that the Group did not already own. The consideration paid, net of costs, was £43 million
(R685 million) and the goodwill arising was £17 million (R274 million).

(iii) Franklin Templeton Nedcor Investment Bank Asset Management Limited

With effect from 1 October 2002, Nedcor Investment Bank Holdings Limited acquired the remaining 50% of Franklin
Templeton Nedcor Investment Bank Asset Management Limited. The consideration paid was £11 million (R180 million) and
the goodwill arising was £9 million (R150 million).

(iv) Other
Other acquisitions made by the US asset management business during the year gave rise to additional goodwill of £5 million
(R79 million).

6(b) Disposals / Non-operating items

(i) Summary
The following gains and losses on the disposal of business operations have been disclosed as non-operating. There were no
non-operating items during 2001.

£m Rm

Year to Year to

31 Dec 31 Dec

Notes 2002 2002

United States — asset management affiliates (b)) 35 558
United Kingdom — asset management subsidiaries (bi(iii} (61) (963)
Rest of World — Old Mutual International (Isle of Man) Limited 6(b)(iv) 20 317
Loss on disposal before tax (6) (88)
Tax — United States asset management affiliates (38) (600)
Loss on disposal after tax (44) (688)

(ii) United States — asset management affiliates ‘

Following the acquisition of United Asset Management in September 2000, the Group has rationalised the affiliates held.
Disposals during the year were NWQ Investment Management Company Inc., C.S. McKee & Company Inc., Suffolk Capital
Management, J.R. Senecal & Associates Investment Counsel and Fiduciary Management Associates. The total consideration
received was £125 million (R1,724 million). The total profit before tax on disposal was £35 million (R553 million) after
charging goodwill attributable to the businesses of £71 million (R981 million) and the associated tax charge was £38 million
(R600 million).

(iii} United Kingdom - asset management subsidiaries

The Group disposed of GNI Holdings Limited in November 2002 and Old Mutual Securities Limited and King & Shaxson
Bond Brokers Limited in December 2002 for total cash consideration of £106 million (R1,674 million). Provisions have been
established in relation to the businesses sold of £28 million (R387 million). A loss on disposal of £61 million (R963 million)
has been incurred after charging goodwill attributable to the businesses of £54 million (R746 million). In respect of Old Mutual
Securities Limited, deferred consideration is to be determined on an earn-out basis over three years. in determining the loss
on disposal, no amount has been included for deferred consideration.

(iv) Rest of World — Old Mutual International {Isle of Man) Limited

In January 2002, Old Mutual International (Isle of Man) Limited, an offshore life assurance business and a 100% subsidiary of
the Group, was sold for cash consideration of £36 million (R574 million), resulting in a profit on disposal of £20 million (R317
million) and no tax was payable. '
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

7 GOODWILL
£m Rm
At At At Al
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
Notes 2002 2001 2002 2001
At beginning of year 1,580 2,279 27,537 25,786
Additions arising on acquisitions in the pericd 8(a) 245 174 3,872 2,122
Adjustments in respect of prior year acquisitions 5 2 79 25
Disposals 8(b) (125) (10) (1,727) (174)
Impairment loss - (500) - (6,196)
Pilgrim Baxter & Associates revenue share adjustments 101 (241) 1,604 (4,200)
Amortisation for the year - (107) (113) (1,689) (1,400)
Foreign exchange and other movements (101) (11) (7,601) 11,574
At end of year 1,598 1,580 22,075 27,537

Analysed between:

Life assurance ' 84 76 1,160 1,325
Asset management i 1,187 1,412 16,397 24,609
General insurance 12 10 166 174
Banking 315 82 4,352 1,429
1,598 1,580 22,075 27,537

Adjustments in respect of prior year acquisitions

Adjustments have been made to goodwili of £67 million (R785 million) that arose on the acquisition in July 2001 of Fidelity &
Guaranty Life Insurance Company. The addition to goodwill of £21 million {R332 million), net of tax, reflects a revision to the
original estimate of the costs involved in exiting an onerous contract.

In addition, the adjustments in respect of prior year acquisitions includes a credit of £16 million {(R253 million) which reflects
the latest estimate of the deferred consideration payable for the purchase of revenue shares of certain affiliates combined
with the effect of disposing of affiliates held for resale at values in excess of the original estimated carrying amount. The
ultimate costs of purchasing these revenue shares will remain uncertain as they are dependent upon future events and hence
are subject to adjustment in future years.

Impairment loss

The impairment loss in the prior year arose from a review of the carrying value of the Group’s UK private client and US asset
management businesses. As a result of this exercise, the Group reduced the carrying value of its unamortised goodwill by
£500 million (R6,196 miilion), reflecting the impact of declining equity markets. A further review was undertaken as at 31
December 2002 which supports the existing carrying value of the goodwill.

Pilgrim Baxter & Associates revenue share adjustments

During 2001, a reduction to goodwill of £241 million (R4,200 million), net of tax, reflected the expiry on 31 December 2001 of
the Group's option to purchase the remaining revenue share from Pilgrim Baxter. On 14 March 2002, the Group negotiated
terms for the purchase of the remaining revenue share which comprised a combination of fixed instalments and a variable
earn-out depending upon profit growth. Adjustments have been made to goodwil! of £101 million (R1,604 million), which
represents the best estimate of the total obligation.

Amortisation for the year

The goodwill amortisation charge for the period of £120 million (R1,895 million) (2001: £132 million (R1,636 million))
comprises £107 million {R1,689 million) (2001: £113 million (R1,400 million)) disclosed above and £13 million (R206 million)
(2001: £19 million (R236 million)) shown within investments in associated undertakings.



Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

8 AMOUNTS OWED TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

£m Rm

At 31 December 2002

Bank overdrafts repayable on demand 2 28

Bank and other loans:

Repayable within one year:

Floating rate notes 45 622

Commercial paper 330 4,559

Term loan 30 414
405 5,595

Repayable between one and two years:

Floating rate notes 12 166

Repayable between two and five years:

Syndicated revolving credit facilities 78 1,077

Euro notes 217 2,998

Floating rate notes 7 97

Other 41 566
343 4,738

Repayable after five years:

Other 5 69
767 10,596

At 31 December 2001

Bank overdrafts repayable on demand 1 17

Bank and other loans:

Repayable within one year:

Syndicated revolving credit facilities 294 5,124

Floating rate notes 74 1,289

Commercial paper _ 112 1,952

Other 4 70
484 8,435

Repayable between one and two years:

Term loan 30 523

Repayable between two and five years:

Syndicated revolving credit facilities 376 6,553

Term loan 6 105
382 6,658
897 15,633

43 Notes to the Financial Statements Qld Mutual plc Press Release 2002
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

8 AMOUNTS OWED TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS CONTINUED

The multi-currency Revolving Credit Facility of £900 million (amount drawn down at 31 December 2002: £78 million (R1,077
million}) is repayable on 13 July 20086. '

Commercial paper is used under a £600 million Euro Commercial Paper ("ECP") programme for periods of up to 12 months.
Commercial papers are issued in various currencies, the proceeds of which are generally swapped.into US dollars at the date
of issuance. '

During the year the company entered into $600 million and $60 million multi-currency revolving credit facilities as back stop
for the £600 million multi-currency ECP programme. Both facilities are 364 day facilities, although the company has term out
options of 18 and 12 months respectively. At 31 December 2002 neither facility was drawn.

The Floating Rate Notes consist of a £45 million note repayable on 31 December 2010 with the holders having the option to
elect for early redemption every six months, a $20 million note repayable by 17 September 2004 and a $10.5 million note
repayable on 18 January 2005.

The term loan of £30 million (R414 million) is repayable on 30 April 2003.

Amounts owed to credit institutions bear interest at variable rates except for a €400 million note. The Old Mutual pic €400

million Euro Notes due 2007 were issued on 10 April 2002. The capital and interest on the notes were immediately swapped
into US Dollars and used to repay existing debt.

8(a) Convertible loan stock

(i) Insurance and other assets

On 2 May 2001, Old Mutual Finance (Cayman Islands) Limited, a 100 per cent. owned subsidiary of the Group, issued
US$650 million 3.625 per cent. Convertible Bonds, which are guaranteed by and convertible into the ordinary shares of Old
Mutual plc at a conversion price of 190p per share at an exchange rate of one US dollar to 69.52p steriing. The bonds are
repayable on 2 May 2005 with the bond holders having the option to elect for redemption on 2 May 2003.

(ii) Banking
The banking unsecured loan stock was acquired with BoE. It is denominated in South African Rand, has an interest rate of
18.1 per cent. and is repayable at the discretion of the borrower.

9 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There have been no significant events between the balance sheet date and 24 February 2003.
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002

1 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ON AN ACHIEVED PROFITS BASIS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

€m Rm
Year to Year {o Year to Year to
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2002 2001 2002 2001
“South Africa
Life assurance 418 588 6,605 7,297
Asset management ‘ 28 37 441 458
Banking 165 290 2,605 3,593
General insurance 35 46 556 570
646 961 10,207 11,918
United States
Life assurance ' 138 17 2,182 220
Asset management 95 116 1,500 1,437
233 133 3,682 1,657
United Kingdom and Rest of World
Life assurance 5 (5) 73 (51)
Asset management 2 @ K| (38)
Banking 56 79 884 979
63 71 988 8390
942 1,165 14,877 14,465
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) : (22) (29) (347) (359)
Debt service costs (58) (67) (916) (830)
Write-down of strategic investments - (21) - {260)
Operating profit based on a long term investment return before goodwill
amortisation and impairment, write-down of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings plc and Nedcor restructuring and integration costs 862 1,048 13,614 13,016
Goodwill amortisation and impairment {120) (632) (1,895) (7,832)
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc (68) (269) (1,080) (3,334)
Nedcor restructuring and integration costs (14) (227) ‘
Short term fluctuations in investment return (including economic assumption
changes)
Life assurance (338) 178 (5,340) 2,205
Other (9) 22 (128) 272
Impact of Capital Gains Tax (CGT) - (78) - (969)
Operating profit on ordinary activities before tax 313 269 4,944 3,358
Non-operating items (26) - {409) -
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 287 269 4,535 3,358
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (190) (371) (2,998) (4,600)
Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after tax 97 (102) 1,537 (1,242)
Minority interests (44) (26) (695) (322)
Profit / (loss) for the financial year 53 (128) 842 (1,564)
Dividends paid and proposed (176) (172) (2,556) (2,6086)
Retained loss for the financial year (123) (300) (1,714) (4,170
Earnings per share — achieved profits basis P ¢
Operating earnings per share 14.1 15.4 222.8 190.8
Basic earnings / (loss) per share 1.4 (3.6) 22.9 (44.1)
Weighted average number of shares — millions 3,670 3,550 3,670 3,550

A& Arhisved Prafite Racie Suinnlementary Information Old Mutual nle Prese Relgaer 2007
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

2 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ON AN ACHIEVED PROFITS BASIS AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2002

£m Rm
At Al At At
31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
2002 2001 2002 2001
Assets: .
Intangible assets (goodwill) 1,598 1,580 22,075 27,537
Insurance and other assets ) 26,593 31,915 367,358 556,232
Banking assets 21,377 11,309 295,291 197,099
Total long term in-force business asset 640 597 8,843 10,397
Total assets 50,208 45,401 693,567 791,265
Liabilities:
Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds 3,426 3,067 47,329 53,442
Minority interests 927 565 12,808 9,847
Subordinated liabilties 18 22 249 383
Insurance and other liabilities ‘ 25,602 31,292 353,666 545,377
Banking liabilities 20,235 10,455 279,515 182,216
Total liabilities 50,208 45,401 693,567 791,265
Reconciliation of total long term in-force business asset:
Value of in-force business 1,089 881 15,045 15,350
Adjustment for discounting CGT - 17 (6) 298
OM! life subsidiaries statutory solvency adjustment (18) 17 (242) (303)
OMUSL statutory solvency adjustment (431) (284) (5,954) (4,948)
Total long term in-force business asset 640 597 8,843 10,397

3 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES ON AN
ACHIEVED PROFITS BASIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

£m Rm

Year to Year to Year to Year 10

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

Profit / (loss) for the financial year 53 (128) 842 (1,564)
Foreign exchange movements 442 (1,277) (5,034) 4,622

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 495 (1,405) (4,192) 3,058
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

4 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN THE CONSOLIDATED ACHIEVED PROFITS EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

£m Rm

Year to Year to Year to Year lo

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 495 (1,405) (4,192) 3,058

Dividends paid and proposed (176) (172) (2,556) (2,606)

319 (1,577) (6,748) 452

Issue of new capital 39 - 619 -

issue of new capital in connection with the acquisition of Fidelity & Guaranty Life - 203 - 2,690

Shares issued under option schemes 1 5 16 61
Proceeds from sale of shares previously held to satisfy claims and errors on

demutualisation - 3 - 37

Net increase / (decrease) in achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds . 359 (1,366) (6,113) 3,240

Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds at the beginning of the year 3,067 4,433 53,442 50,202

Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds at the end of the year 3,426 3,067 47,329 53,442

5 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These suppiementary financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the methodology for supplementary
reporting for long term insurance business (the achieved profits method) issued in December 2001 by the Association of
British Insurers.

These supplementary financial statements have been audited by KPMG Audit Plc and prepared in conjunction with our
consuiting actuaries Tillinghast-Towers Perrin.

The objective of the achieved profits method is to recognise profit as it is earned arising from contracts of long term insurance
business. The methodology is based on an attribution of the assets of a life insurance company between those backing long
term insurance contracts (backing assets) and the residual assets representing unencumbered capital.

The backing assets cover :
(i) the long term liabilities calculated in accordance with local supervisory requirements; and
(i) the solvency capital requirements in each country {or equivalent where there is no local requirement).

Under the achieved profits method the profits of the long term insurance business comprise:
(i) the cash transfers to the residual assets from the backing assets as determined following the statutory valuation;

(i) the movement over the accounting period in the present value of the expected future cash flows to the residual assets
from contracts in-force at the balance sheet date and their backing assets; and

(ii} the return on the residual assets.

Shareholder profit arises fundamentally from:

(i) the difference between (a) the amounts charged to policyholders for guarantees, expenses and insurance and (b) the
actual experience in respect of these items; and

(i} the investment return earned on capital.

In addition for the United States business, the guarantees for interest credited to policyholder funds are reset periodically.
The assumed future credited interest rates are consistent with investment earnings made and in line with recent company
policy. The United States business is included from the effective acquisition date of 1 July 2001.

The treatment within these supplementary statements of all businesses other than life assurance is unchanged from the
primary financial statements. The requirements of FRS19, Deferred Tax, have been complied with for both 2001 and 2002.



Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

6 COMPONENTS OF ACHIEVED PROFITS EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

£m Rm

At - At At Al

31 Dec 3t Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

Shareholders’ adjusted net worth 2,337 2,186 32,284 38,092

Equity shareholders’ funds 2,786 2,470 38,486 43,045

Adjustment to include OMI life subsidiaries on a statutory solvency basis (18) (17) (242) (303)

Adjustment to include OMUSL on a statutory solvency basis (431) (284) (5,954) (4,948)

Adjustment for discounting CGT - 17 (6) 298

Value of in-force business 1,089 881 15,045 15,350

Value of in-force business before cost of solvency capital 1,195 964 16,506 16,803

Cost of solvency capital (106) (83) (1,461) (1,453)

Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds 3,426 3,067 47,329 53,442
Pro-forma adjustment to bring listed subsidiaries to market value

Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds 3,426 3,067 47,329 53,442

Adjustment to bring listed subsidiaries to market value 502 455 6,938 7,922

Adjusted embedded value 3,928 3,522 54,267 61,364

The achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds are the sum of the shareholders' adjusted net worth and the value of in-force
business. Old Mutual plc's adjusted net worth comprises the assets backing the solvency capital, the residual assets in the
life insurance companies and the other net assets of the Group. The value of in-force is the present value of the expected
future cash flows to the residual assets from contracts in-force at the balance sheet date and their backing assets less the
amount of the solvency capital.

The shareholders’ adjusted net worth is equal to the consolidated equity shareholders’ funds adjusted to reflect:

(i) the Old Mutual International (OMI} and Old Mutual US life assurance (OMUSL) subsidiaries on a statutory solvency
basis. The adjusted net worth also includes goodwill relating to. OMUSL of £74 million (R1,022 million) at 31 December
2002 and £65 million (R1,133 million) at 31 December 2001;

(i) the difference between the face value and discounted value of accrued Capital Gains Tax on South African
shareholders’ funds. The value of in-force has been restated as this adjustment was previously included in the value of
in-force.

All non-life subsidiaries are included at net asset value plus goodwill (as reflected in the primary financial statements) in the
achieved profits shareholders’ funds. A pro forma adjustment to include listed subsidiaries at market value has been provided

separately.

The table below sets out a geographical analysis of the value of in-force business.

£m Rm

At AL, At At

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

South Africa ' 682 527 9,419 9,176
Individual business 417 325 5,751 5,653
Group business 265 202 3,668 3,523
United States 341 271 4,712 4,722
United Kingdom and Rest of World 66 83 914 1,452
Value of in-force business 1,089 881 15,045 15,350
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

6 COMPONENTS OF ACHIEVED PROFITS EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS CONTINUED

The encumbered and unencumbered capital as at 31 December 2002 and 31 December 2001 is shown in the table below.

£m Rm

At At At At

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

2002 2001 2002 2001

South Africa 1,139 1,000 15,739 17,414
Encumbered capital 1,008 729 13,925 12,697
Unencumbered capital 131 271 1,814 4,717
United States . 355 206 4,904 3,591
Encumbered capital 155 92 2,144 1,605
Unencumbered capital 200 114 2,760 1,986

For South Africa the average unencumbered capital applicable for the year ended 31 December 2002 and the year ended
December 2001 was £160 million (R2,524 million) and £139 million (R1,722 million) respectively. These average figures were
used to determine the expected return on the unencumbered capital.




1

Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

7 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF RESULTS

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
Africa States of World Total Africa States of World Total
Year to 31 December 2002
New business contribution 114 80 3 197 1,806 1,261 42 3,109
Profits from existing business
Expected return on in-force business 150 35 6 191 2,367 561 100 3,028
Expected return on encumbered
capital 13 6 4 123 1,778 98 63 1,939
Experience variances 36 - (10) 26 569 (3) (160) 406
Operating assumption changes (17 (9) 2 (24) (268) (141) 28 (381)
Risk margin changes - 18 - 18 - 284 - 284
Expected return on unencumbered
capital 22 8 - 30 353 122 - 475
Life assurance operating profit before ‘
tax 418 138 5 561 6,605 2,182 73 8,860
Investment return variances
On value of in-force (87) (25) (2) (114) (1,381) (396) (23) (1,800)
On capital {250) 4) - {(14) (268) (3,950) (60) (221) 4,231)
Effect of economic assumption changes 24 19 1 44 371 303 17 691
Life assurance achieved profits before
tax 105 128 (10) 223 1,645 2,029 (154) 3,520
Attributed tax (68) (32) - (100) (1,067) (508) - (1,575)
Life assurance achieved profits after
tax 37 96 (10) 123 - 578 1,521 {154) 1,945
Year to 31 December 2001 )
New business contribution 109 19 3 131 1,350 244 42 1,636
Profits from existing business
Expected return on in-force business 191 20 13 224 2,369 250 160 2,779
Expected return on encumbered
capital 147 3 5 155 1,820 35 62 1,817
Experience variances 42 (15) 2 29 525 (189) 26 362
Operating assumption changes 3 - 9) (6) 39 - (110) (71)
Risk margin changes 77 - - 77 953 - - 953
Development costs - (13) (19) (32) - (161) (231) (392)
Expected return on unencumbered
capital 19 3 - 22 241 41 - 282
Life assurance operating profit before
tax ' 588 17 (5) 600 7.297 220 51 7,466
Investment return variances
On value of in-force 50 8 3) 55 617 100 (34) 683
On capital 40 (13) 15 42 492 (172) 186 506
Effect of economic assumption changes 64 11 6 81 799 139 78 1,016
Impact of Capital Gains Tax (78) - - (78) (969) - - (869)
Life assurance achieved profits before
tax 664 23 13 700 8,236 287 179 8,702
Attributed tax (211) (6) (11) (228) (2,626) (71) (136) (2,833)
Life assurance achieved profits after
tax 453 17 2 472 5,610 216 43 5,869
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

7 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF RESULTS CONTINUED

The new business contribution is the value of new business written during the period, determined initially at the point of sale,
and then accumutated to the end of the period by applying the discount rate to the value of new business at the point of sale
and adding back the expected cost of solvency capital between the point of sale and the end of the period.

The expected return on the in-force business is determined by applying the discount rate to the value of in-force business at
the beginning of the period and adding back the expected cost of solvency capital over the period.

The expected return on encumbered capital is determined by applying the equity return assumption at the previous year end
to the opening solvency capital.

The experience variances arise in the period due to differences between the actual experience and the assumptions used to
calculate the value at the start of the period. The amount under operating-assumption changes reflects revised expectations
of future experience. The risk margin change for December 2001 reflects a 0.5% reduction in the South African risk margin.
The risk margin change for December 2002 reflects a 0.5% reduction in the United States risk margin. The United States risk
margin was reviewed in line with the United States market practice. The investment assumptions are shown in section 9.

Expected return on the unencumbered capital for South Africa is 14% of the unencumbered capital and 7% for the United
States. The unencumbered capital is the life capital in excess of the solvency capital referred to previously. For South Africa,
the life capital is an average value of investible shareholders’ assets, excluding subsidiaries eliminated on consolidation,
adjusted for net fund flow. Investment return variances consist of two components: investment variances on the value in-force
which represent the differences between the actual returns in the period and the assumptions used to calculate the value at
the start of the period; and short term fluctuations of investment return on the life capital.

Effect of economic assumption changes represents the impact of interest rate changes. The impact of changes to the
differentials between the various investment and economic assumptions are also included. However, the risk margin changes
for December 2001 and December 2002, referred to previously, are included under profits from existing business (risk
margins changes). The investment assumptions are shown in section 9.

The impact of CGT relates to the change in the cost of capital as at 31 December 2001 as a result of the introduction of
capital gains tax in South Africa in October 2001. This is a one-off item as going forward the impact of capital gains tax is
allowed for in the calculation of the value of in-force business. The segmental results for the United States include the
operating profits generated by Old Mutual Reassurance in Ireland, a subsidiary of Old Mutual plc, which provides reinsurance
to the United States life companies.

The difference between the total tax charge shown in the above segmental analysis, and the total tax charge shown in the
profit and loss account in section 1, represents the tax charge on the non-life assurance businesses as shown in the primary
financial statements.

£m Rm
Year to 31 December 2002
Tax on life assurance achieved profits
South Africa ~ value of in-force 80 1,264
~ capital (12) (197)
United States 32 508
United Kingdom and Rest of World - .
100 1,575
Tax on non-life assurance businesses 90 1,423
Tax on profit of ordinary activities 190 2,998
Year to 31 December 2001
Tax on life assurance achieved profits
South Africa ~ value of in-force 200 2,490
~ capital 11 136
United States 6 71
United Kingdom and Rest of World ‘ 11 136
228 2,833
Tax on other businesses 143 1,767

Tax on profit of ordinary activities 371 4,600




Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

8 VALUE OF NEW BUSINESS

The tables below set out a geographical analysis of the value of new business (VNB) for the year to 31 December 2002 and
the year to 31 December 2001. United States new business numbers for 2001 are in respect of second six months only. New
business profitability (as measured by the ratio of the value of new business to the Annual Premium Equivalent) is also
shown. Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) is calculated as recurring premiums (RP) plus 10% of single premiums (SP).

The value of new business is grossed up to the pre-tax level. The assumptions and tax rates used to calculate the value of
new business are set out in section 9.

For the year to 31 December 2002 For the year to 31 December 2002

RP sp APE VNB RP sP APE VNB

£m £m £m £m Margin Rm Rm Rm Rm

South Africa 134 1,014 235 114 49% 2,104 16,009 3,705 1,806
Individual business 115 546 170 53 31% 1,808 8,624 2,670 841
Group business 19 468 65 61 93% 296 7,385 1,035 965
United States 37 2,629 300 80 27% 586 41,500 4,736 1,261
UK & Rest of World 12 104 22 3 12% 186 1,641 350 42
Total 183 3,747 557 197 36% 2,876 59,150 8,791 3,109
For the year to 31 December 2001 For the year to 31 December 2001

RP SP APE VNB RP SP APE VNB

£m £m £m £m Margin Rm Rm Rm Rm

South Africa 140 1,142 254 109 43% 1,728 14,143 3,142 1,350
Individual business 120 792 199 66 33% © 1,486 9,812 2,467 813
Group business 20 350 55 43 80% 242 4,331 675 537
United States* 26 578 84 19 22% 349 7,719 1,121 244
UK & Rest of World 12 106 23 3 15% 151 1,323 283 42
Total 178 1,826 361 131 36% 2,228 23,185 4,547 1,636

* United States new business for 6 months only

The value of new business after tax is shown in the tables below.

For the year to 31 December 2002 For the year to 31 December 2002

RP SP APE VNB RP SP APE VNB

£m £m £m £m Margin Rm Rm Rm Rm

South Africa 134 1,014 235 71 30% 2,104 16,009 3,705 1,124
Individual business 115 546 170 33 20% 1,808 8,624 2,670 524
Group business 19 468 65 38 58% 296 7,385 1,035 600
United States 37 2,629 300 56 19% 586 41,500 4,736 883
UK & Rest of World 12 104 22 3 12% 186 1,641 350 42
Total 183 3,747 557 130 23% 2,876 59,150 8,791 2,049
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

8 VALUE OF NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED

For the year to 31 December 2001 For the year to 31 December 2001

RP 8P APE VNB RP sp APE VNB

£m £m £fm £m Margin Rm Rm Rm Rm

South Africa 140 1,142 254 68 27% 1,728 14,143 3,142 840
Individual business 120 792 199 41 21% 1,486 9,812 2,467 506
Group business 20 350 55 27 49% 242 4,331 675 334
United States™ ) 26 578 84 13 15% 349 7,719 1,121 171
UK & Rest of World 12 106 23 3 15% 151 1,323 283 42
Total 178 1,826 361 84 23% 2,228 23,185 4,546 1,053

* United States new business for 6 months only

The value of new individual unit trust and some group market-linked business written by the life companies is excluded, as
the profits on this business arise in the asset management subsidiaries. It also excludes premium increases arising from
indexation arrangements in respect of existing business, as these are already included in the value of in-force business. The
premiums shown for the United States exclude reinsurance ceded externally.

The increase in the margin for South Africa occurred because a higher proportion of Group Business With-proﬁt annuities was
sold.

A reconciliation of the new business premiums shown in the notes to the financial statements to those shown above, for the
year ended 31 December 2002, is set out beiow. '

£m Rm

Recurring . Single Recurring Single

Year to 31 December 2002 premiums premiums premiums premiums

New business premiums in the notes to the financial statements 219 4,003 3,444 63,187
Less:

United States reinsurance ceded externally (36) 4) (568) (62)

Group market-linked business not valued - (185) - (2,921)

Unit trust business not valued - (64) - (1,007)

Selestia business not valued - (3) - 47)

New business premiums as per achieved profits supplementary statements 183 3,747 2,876 59,150
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

9 ASSUMPTIONS

The principal assumptions used in the calculation of the value of in-force business and the value of new business are set out
below.

» The pre-tax investment and economic assumptions used for South African and United States businesses were as

follows:

. 31 Dec 31 Dec

South Africa 2002 2001
Fixed interest return 11.0% 12.0%
Equity return ‘ 13.0% 14.0%
Property return 12.0% 13.0%
Inflation 7.0% 8.0%
Risk discount rate 13.5% 14.5%
31 Dec 31 Dec

United States 2002 2001
Treasury yield ) 4.0% 5.0%
Inflation 3.0% 3.0%
New money yield assumed 6.0% 6.6%
Net portfolio earned rate 7.2% 7.3%
Risk discount rate 8.0% 9.5%

» For the other operations, appropriate investment and economic assumptions were chosen on bases consistent with
those adopted in South Africa.

(i) Where applicable, rates of future bonuses have been set at levels consistent with the investment return
assumptions.

(i) Projected company taxation is based on the current tax basis that applies in each country.

» For the South African business full allowance has been made for Secondary Tax on Companies that may be payabile in
South Africa. Full account has been taken of the impact of CGT introduced in South Africa with effect from 1 October
2001. It has been assumed that 10% of the equity portfolio (excluding group subsidiaries) will be traded each year. For
the United States business full allowance has been made for existing tax attributes of the companies, including the use
of existing carry forwards and preferred tax credit investments. Achieved profits resuits are initially calculated on an after
tax basis and are then grossed up to the pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and loss account and the segmental
analysis of results. The tax rates used were the effective corporation tax rates of 37.8% for South African business
(December 2001: 37.8%), 30% for United States business (December 2001: 30%) and 0% for United Kingdom and Rest
of World {(December 2001: 0%) except for the investment return on capital for which the attributed tax was derived from
the primary accounts.

» The assumed future mortality, morbidity and voluntary discontinuance rates have been based as far as possible on
analyses of recent operating experience. Allowance has been made where appropriate for the effect of expected AIDS-
related claims.

» The management expenses attributable to life assurance business have been analysed between expenses relating to
the acquisition of new business and the maintenance of business in-force. Assumed future expenses were based on
levels experienced up to 31 December 2002. The future expenses attributable to life assurance business do not include
Group holding company expenses.

» Material development costs are disclosed separately in 2001. No allowance has been made for future development
costs.

» Future investment expenses were based on the current scales of fees payable by the life assurance companies to the

asset management subsidiaries. To the extent that these fees include profit margins for the asset management
subsidiaries, these margins have not been included in the value of in-force business or the value of new business.
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

9 ASSUMPTIONS CONTINUED

> The effect of increases in premiums over the period for policies in-force at 31 December 2002 and at 31 December 2001
has been included in the value of in-force business only where such increases are associated with indexation
arrangements. Other increases in premiums of existing policies are included in the value of new business.

» New schemes written on which recurring single premiums are expected to be received on a regular basis are treated as
new business. The annualised premium is recognised as recurring premium new business at inception of the scheme
and is determined by annualising the actual premiums received during the year in question. Subsequent recurring single
premiums received in future years are not treated as new business, as these have already been provided for in
calculating the value of in-force business.

» The value of in-force and value of new business is sensitive to changes in various economic and non-economic
assumptions. The sensitivities of the value of in-force and value of new business to changes in key assumptions are set

out in section 9.

Conversions between Rand, US Dollar and Sterling were carried out at the following exchange rates:

Rand per USS per Rand per

Sterling Sterling Us$

At 31 December 2002 13.8141 1.6105 8.5775
At 31 December 2001 17.4286 1.4542 11.9850
Year to 31 December 2002 (average) 15.7878 1.5030 10.5042
Year to 31 December 2001 (average) 12.3923 1.4405 9.2670
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

10 ALTERNATIVE ASSUMPTIONS

The tables below for South Africa and the United States show the sensitivity of the value of in-force at 31 December 2002
and the value of new business for the year ended 31 December 2002 to changes in key assumptions. For each sensitivity
illustrated, all other assumptions have been left unchanged.

The sensitivity of the adjustment for discounting CGT, which is included in the shareholders' adjusted net worth, to changes
in the central discount rate is not material and is not included in the table below.

£m Rm

Value of Value of Value of Value of

in-force new life in-force new life

business at business at business at business at

. 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

South Africa 2002 2002 2002 2002

Central assumptions 682 114 9,419 1,806

Value before cost of solvency capital 763 123 10,545 1,950

Cost of solvency capital (81) (9) (1,126) (144)
Effect of:

0 Central discount rate +1% 586 100 8,090 1,582
Value before cost of solvency capital ‘ 722 115 9,971 1,821
Cost of solvency capital {136) (15) (1,881) (239)

Central discount rate -1% 790 130 10,920 2,056
Value before cost of solvency capital 809 132 11,187 © 2,093
Cost of solvency capital (19) (2) (267) (37)

Decreasing the pre-tax investment return assumptions by 1% with bonus rates

changing commensurately 592 : 103 8,184 1,626
Value before cost of solvency capital 734 118 10,150 1,868
Cost of solvency capital (142) (15) {1,966) (241)

Voluntary discohtinuance rates increasing by 25% 651 100 8,989 1,584

Maintenance expense levels increasing by 20% with no corresponding increase

in policy charges 613 105 8,464 1,653

Increasing the inflation assumption by 1% 672 112 9,278 1,769
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information
for the year ended 31 December 2002 (continued)

10 ALTERNATIVE ASSUMPTIONS CONTINUED

£m Rm

Value of Value of Value of Value of
in-force new life in-force new life

business at business at business at business at

31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec

United States 2002 2002 2002 2002

Central assumptions 341 80 4,712 1,261
Value before cost of solvency capital 364 94 5,029 1,490
Cost of solvency capital (23) (14) (317) (229)

Effect of:

Central discount rate +1% 317 72 4,374 1,135
Value before cost of solvency capital 344 89 4,753 1,408
Cost of solvency capital (27) (17) (379) (273)

Central discount rate -1% 368 89 5,084 1,401
Value before cost of solvency capital 386 100 5,332 1,579
Cost of solvency capital (18) {11) (248) (178)

Decreasing the pre-tax investment return assumptions by 1% with credited rates

changing commensurately 345 81 4,765 1,281
Value before cost of solvency capital 367 95 5,074 1,504
Cost of solvency capital (22) (14) (309) (223)

Voluntary discontinuance rates increasing by 25% 316 ‘ 74 4,362 1,166

Maintenance expense levels increasing by 20% with no corresponding increase

in policy charges 33 77 4,566 1,219

Increasing the inflation assumption by 1% 341 80 4,705 1,260

increasing Risk Based Capital to 200%, with 1% reduction in central discount rate 344 78 4,752 1,232
Value before cost of solvency capital 380 100 5,249 1,579
Cost of solvency capital {(36) (22) (497) (347)

87 Acrhieved Prafite Ragie Sunnlementarv Information Old Mutual ple Press Release 2002



Old Mutual Plec
Nedcor Limited (NED SJ)
Results for the year ended 31 December 2002

Nedcor Limited (“Nedcor”), the South African banking group, in which Old
Mutual ple (“Old Mutual”) has a 52.9% holding, has today issued financial
results for the year ended 31 December 2002.

The full text of the Nedcor announcement is available on the JSE Securities Exchange
News Service (SENS) and on the Old Mutual website, www.oldmutual.com. A paper
copy of the full Nedcor announcement is available from Investor Relations, Old
Mutual Plc, 31 Floor, Lansdowne House, 57 Berkeley Square, London W1J 6ER. The
results have been drawn up in accordance with South African Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (GAAP) and will be consolidated in the accounts of Old Mutual
in accordance with UK GAAP.

Old Mutual will release its preliminary results on 24 February 2003.

Commenting on Nedcor’s results, Jim Sutcliffe, Chief Executive of Old Mutual
said:

“The year 2002 saw a major advance for Nedcor with the acquisition of BoFE.

Turbulent markets and the impact of accounting issues have affected these results
but the company has laid strong foundations for the future.”

13 February 2003

ENQUIRIES:

Old Mutual, London Tel: +44 20 7569 0100
James Poole

Old Mutual, South Africa Tel: +27 11 8815792

Nad Pillay



Nedcor reports 9% growth in core earnings,
32% decline in headline earnings after

transiation losses

The year 2002 has bean another challenging end eventful ona for Nedcor and for the South
Affican banking industry. The merger with BoE Limited (‘BoE) during the year creatod the
opportunity for a major restructuring and realignment of the Nedcor Group, which cutminated
in the legal and practical merger of four banks to form the new Nedbank Limited (‘Negbank’}
on 1 January 2003 {legal day one’.

The industry experienced extreme volatility in rand exchanga rates, four successive interest
rate hikes, troubles in the microlanding industry, kiquidity strees in of failure of some smaller
banks and referred ditficulties from unsattied glabal marksts.

Within this industry environment Nedcor had an active year and reorganised the group to
establish pew platfomns for higher levels of ctient servica, competitivenass, efficiency and
profitabifity. The merger with BoE fils ideally into Nedcor's growth strategy and most of BoE's
business units align well with those of Nedeor, In addiion, Nedeor's scalable technology
platforms will benefit from the transaction volume increases imroduced by BoE, and there is
potential for significant cost synergies from the merging of duplicated services,

Key strategic dovelopments during the year:

Acquisition of BoE

The feature of the year was the pequisition of BoE with effect from 2 July 2002, BoE was
acquired at a cost of R7,7bn ang was funded through a combination of cash (R4bn from
subommatedwan notes and RY fm from own resources) end equity R2,2bn. After fair-

vale £ policy totalling R1,1bn BoE's at-

acquisition asset value was FM 9bn, resulting in goodwill of R2,8bn arising on acquisition.

Integration of banking subsidiaries

The acquisition of BoE was the catalyst for an overall Nedcor Group reorganisation, which
entaind the integraton of Bo, Nedcor investment Bank (NIE’), Cape of Good Hope Bank
['CoGHB') and parts of Peoples Bank Limited into Nedbank with effect from 1 January
2003, and parts of BoE into Peoples Bank later in 2003,

frican baoking licences on 1 January 2003
baing successfui.

» Acquisition of NIB minosities
As pan of the integration Nedcor acquired, with effect from 1 October 2002, the
outstanding rinority sharehoiders’ interests in NIB for R9BBm, which was settied by the
issue of new Nedcor shares.

Enhanced capital structures

To fund the acquisitions of BoE end the NIB minorities and to optimisa and restructure its
capital Nedoor unciertook three major capital raisings totalling RS,2bn during the year.
Trese comprised the subordinatad foan note raising af Rébn in July 2002, the listings of
R3,2bn Nedcor shares in July and October 2002, as well as a listed non-redeernable non-
cumutative Nedbank preference shara issus of R2bn in Decamber 2002

New operating strucluras

The group was rexeganised ita a new operating structure that wilt conduct busiress under
throe distinctive primary bank brands, namely Nedbank, Nedbank Corporate and Peoples
Bank. All teadership pasitions ware confirmad at an early stags of the merger. Over 20 000
managers and staff have been formally appointed to or confirmad in their new positions in
terms of the merger requiroments of the new Labour Relations Act,

Weaith management rationalisation

With 8 view to rationalising the wealth management activities of Nedbank, NIB and BoE,
NIB acquirad the remaining 50% of FT NIBAM trom Frankiin Templeton for a consideration
of R180m with eftect from 1 October 2002,

The wealtth management activities were classified into two {ocus areas, namely private
clients and institubonal asset management, The private ciient activities, both domestically
and intemationally, wilt continue as a Nedcor/Cid Mutual jeint venture operating under the
BoE brand. BoE's South African institutional esset management, e business requiiing
scaip, has been sold, with effact from 1 January 2003, to empowerment partners spear-
headed by AKA Capital Limited snd partrered by Otd Mutual and Peoples Bank.

Old Mutual Bank joint venture

The structure of the Old Mutual Bank joint venture, which antals the merger of the
Permanent Bank deposit-toking activiies and infrestructure with Old Mutual Bank, was
revised during the year, it now operates under the Old Mutual Bank brand as @ division of
Nedbank with effect from 1 January 2003, It primary focus will be to deliver banking
products to Oid Mutusl clients.

-

Merger and integration planning

Much time and ottention has been devoted to plannmg for the integration and realisation
of the merger syrergies. tis acutely aware of tha integration risks
arising from the menger and has reong ies and resources to
ensure that both the merger process and ongoing operations ane properly resourced.
Integration milestones have Deen set and are being closely monitored, with progress
curenty ahead of initial targets.

The integration process continues 10 go well and legal day ona procested smoothty. Senior
and kay staff iosses are minima, asset growth is robust, deposit return fiows arae strong and
fiquidity has been optimised.

Net racurming synengies, including funding and capital efficiencies and after deducting
integration costs, a® expected to grow from R110m before tax in 2003 to R%0Sm before
tax from 2006 onwards. The synergies are planned from the following areas:

Al Target Reduction Current

inception 2005 % status.

Bank ficences ] 4 50 Done
Treasuries 10 3 0 Done
Brands 20 12 40 In progress
Office premises 49 18 &1 I progress
Branches 634 601 13 Inpmogress
Products 358 223 43 In progress
1T systems. 176 33 In progress
Staff (permanent and temporary) 25 700 21 850 15 25100

s Acquisition of Planet Finance
Planet Finance, the assat-based finance business of the tormer Saambou Bank, was
acquired by Nedcar's subsidiary Imperial Bank Limited for approximataly RBS0m with
effect from 1 September 2002. Impernial Bank also won & mandate to collect a book of a
turther Ribn on behall of the receiver of Saamboy Bank,

Commentary on results

Core earnings (i excluding translation gains and 1nsses and merger and reorganisation costs)
grew by 9% to R3 366m (2001: R3 033m), comprising 7% growth in South African operations
and 16% growth in imternationel operations. Core sarnings per share, due to the dilutory effect
of new shares issued for the acquisitions of BoE and NIB, grew at @ tower rate of 4% to
1330cps (2001 1 284cps).

Headlina eamnings declined by 32% to R2 585m (2001: R3 789m), due mainly to the effects of
the volatility of the rand exchange rate that caused transiation losses in 2002, as opposed to
translation gains in 2001,

Attributable earnings increased to R384m (2001: R13m), after providing for exceptional capital
fossas totafiing R1,60n {2001: R3,8bn).

Return on equity increased to 21,8% (2001: 20,6%). while retum on assets decreased to
1,57% {2001: 1,83%).

A final dividend of 310cps (2001: 310cps) has been daclared, giving total dividends of 515cps
(2001: 500cps) for the year, at B dividend cover of 2,6 times (2001: 2,6 imes), based on core
earnings and 2,0 times {2003: 3,1 times), based on headline earnings.,

The consolidation of BoE distorts the comparability of Nedeor's organic performance with
2001, However. Bof's resuits are separately disclosad in the segmental report. The
commentary befow seeks to give 8 perspective on Nedcor's overall performance, both
including and excluding BoE.

Advances and net interest income

Advances grew by 34% (15%, excluding BaE), while net interest income grew by a more muted
20% (12%, exciuding Bog) to RB,3bn (2001: R5,3bn]. This resufted from presswre on marging
by virtue of the liquidrty squeeze thet accurred during the period of industry turbulence, and
also from lower endowmmnent income due ta the redeployment of cash invested in BoE, Imperial
Bank, other juint ventures and cash dividends peid. BoE was under liquidity stress when it was
acquired and this clearly impactad advarsely on interest margins. However, we are pleased to
report strong retums o deposit flows and good progress in restoring margins.

Non-interest revenue

Non-intarest revenue, excluding and items. grew strongly
by 379 {15%. excluding BoE) to R6,9bn (200 : RS, 1bn). The foundation for this increasa was
pleasing growth of 45% (20%, excluding BoE) in commission and fas income, supplemenied
by good growln in bancassurance revenues and trading income derived from exchange and
securities dealing.

Translation effects

in 2001 the substantial decling in the rand exchanga rata from R7,55 to R12,05 to the USS as
at 31 December 2001 resulted in translation gains totalling R1,1bn from integrated operations
acenying to headline earnings, In 2002 the strengthening in the rand exchange rato from R12,05
10 R8,60 to the US$ es al 31 December 2002 resulted in a reciprocal transiation loss of R1bn.
This loss was partially relieved by the raiease as at 30 June 2002 of a general nisk provision of
R400m craated in 2001 o cover unidantified but inherent rsks that could arise Fom the
exceptional rand depreciation of 2001.

in addition, translation losses of R411m (2001: translation gains of R263m) resulting from
conversion of non-intagrated foreign entities have been taken directly to reservas.

Specific and general risk provisions

The credit cimate held steady and arears trends penerally mproved duning 2002, despite
increased interest rates, Nedcor is coghisant, however, of the nead for adopting a conservative
provisioning policy and this is mflacted in the income statornent charge increase of 68%,
including BoE and additional provisions for the ringfenced Business Banking small and
madium enterprises (SME) book and the microloan seclor. Non-performing loans, mciuding
BoE, represent 3,8% (2001: 4,6%) of total advances and the net provision coverage, after
allowing for expectad recoverias, is conservative at 157% (2001: 147%). The ratio of balance
sheet provisions to total advances is 3,1% (2001: 3.3%) as at 31 December 2002,

In the trading statemant of 21 Neovembar 2002 Nedcor raported on the need for additional
provisions in two areas, namefy for a ringfanced, non-performing SME book, and for
microleans.

Additional provisions of R546m charged for these areas have had a material, but largely non-
recuming, negative effect on 2002 cora samings. Both of these experiences occurred in
initiatives aimed et our activities in ditional markets. Revised policies are in
place to avoid repetition of these losses.

Operational and financial synergy targets

have
been identified and com'mttod to. Overall

implementation pians, includ ystems migration
p!am, are in place. De business and

U i (:msemamm plans will pe

finatised by 31 March 2003, New terms and
conditions for all emplovees will be implemented
on 1 Aprit 2003

Firstly. Nedcor has an exposure 1o SMEs through an initiative in the 1ate nineties focused on
develoning this sector, which is key to dovelopmont of the economy. This sector has special
characteristics with a potential to yield higher retums, but gt increased risk. High growth was
experianced and, by the start of 2002 the total book had grown to R3,2bn, However, this
included non-pertorming exposures totaling R700m, which wera set aside in 1833 to be
separately managed as a ringfenced collactions book.

Ouning 2002 # became apparent that collections wers faling well below those praviously
anticipated and a full review of this book was conducted. As a consequence we reported in the
trading statement that provisions, the timing of which had historicafly been created under a
paticy of legal certainty, would ba accelerated in 2002. This would result in an additional charge
of R400m (R280m after tax). over and above the R190m already budgeted, against 2002
earnings.

The ringfenced SME book has now been sold, and the sale price was detarmined &t the
prasent vaiue of estimated future coflactions, net of collection costs. The adjustment of
povisions to recognise the sale price necessitated a turther provision of RB8m, bringing the
total ringlenced SME book provisions for 2002 to R8S6m (2001: R75m). This effectively

provisions and coilection costs that would have been charged in future years, The

nngfencad collection operation has been closed and, in termns of the sale agreemant, Nedeor
may recoup same josses if collections are achisved in excess of certain thrasholds.
Secondly, Nedcor has adopted a cautious approach to microlending and does not have a large
@XPOosLI to this market. We nevertheless did not escapa the troubles of this industry and have
recognised bad-debt provisions totatlng R225m (2001: R30m), soma of which are shared with
our partners, in respoct of total microloan exposures. Provisions in respect of unsocured
microloarn edvences stand at 34% (2001: 9%),

Nedcor's axpasure to microlanding, and to retallers active in microlending, has increased with
the acquisition of BOE, However, unsecured exposures of RS72m {2001 R377m) to tho
microloan industry represant only 8,5% of totel advances. Qur microloan exposure continues
to be closely watched, as this sector has deary experienced stressful times, and stringent
provisioning policies and monitoring practices are in place,

In all other major businesses provisions have reduced in line with amears trends, We are
naturally concernad about our bad experiences in the SME and microlending sectors, Both are
sectors wa should engage, bul they clearly raquise a modified approach and methodoiegy to
ensure that cur negetive axperiences are not repeated.

Expenses

Expenses increased by 35% (13%, exciuding BoE), with our efficiency ratio declining to 55,4%
(2001; 52,5%). but rermaining constant at 52 5%, extiuding Bok,

Taxation

The charge for taxation, exciuding exceptiona! ilems and the recognition of the Peaples Bank
deterred-tax asset of R185m, remained constant et R765m (2001: R772m). On the same basis
the effectiva rate of taxation was 18.5% (2001: 20,1%), assisted by lower levels of taxation on
offshora income and increased dividend ncome.

Core sarnings benefited by R130m (R185m before allowing for minority interests) trom the non-

recumng racoqmtnn of g deferred-tax asse! in respect of unutilised tax lossas in Pecples Bank,
This was required in tarms of SA Generally Actounting Practice [ GAAPY, because

the positive profit record of Peoples Bank for the past two years reinforeod the probability of
tha tax losses being wilisad by future taxable income.

The Treasury consolidation, including the
reduction of 10 frontoftices into thres and the
centralisation of the backofticss in
Johannesburg, was compieted on scheduie on
1 February 2003, The Capitai Markets integration
ig well-advancad, The Cape of Good Hope Bank
refai 3t IZi!gtuli(H’ process has started and is
well on track. An initial sta¥f survey has showed

1 extremely positive staff attitude.

Equity-accounted income and income
attributable to minority shareholders

Equity-accounted income of R152m (2001: R181m) daclined mainly dua to the salg of tormer
associate NedTel Cellular in the second half of 2001, The discontinuation of equity accounting
of Zimbabwean associste Merchant Bank of Central Africa, with effect from 1 July 2001, also
contribited to the decting in equity-accounted income. Minarty interests at R333m 2001:
R164m) doubled following the consofidation of Gerrard Private Bank for a full year (2001: seven
months) and the first-time inchision of the 30% Peaples Bank empowerment minority with
effact from 1 January 2002, Thesa increases were partially offset by the cessation of minority
ntarests in NI fom t Octaber 2002.

Merger and reorganisation costs

Once-oft merger and recrganisation costs totatling R205m after tax (2004: R NiI) hava been
charged to the income statement, These comprise R8EM in respact of the Nedcor Group
reprganisation and intagration and R119m for the closure and reorganisation: of the Penmanent
Bank operations in aniticipation of Permanent Bank's joint verture with Oid Mutual Bank. These
costs aro excluded in the determination of core aarnings.

Exceptionai capital items

The market vatue of Nedoor's investment of 103 miflion shares in Dimension Data plc, listod on
the London Stock Exchange, has declined turther and has boen marked 10 Market at its
31 December 2002 price of R4,02 per share {2001; R14,50 per share).

Other exceptional items comprise goodwill smortisation of RS01m (2001: R273m), including
R214m for BoE, fer-vatue impaimment writedowns d R119m (2001: R34m) for fixed assets and
cther investments and RS8m for losses on and sales of i

Segmental reporting

Nodcor's South Afiican operations contribited R2 788m (2001: R2 595m) to cora earnings,
white intemational operations, which wera influanced by lower rand-translated earnings,
contributed R578m (2001: R498m). The net contribution from BoE's domestic and international
operations, after deducting Nedcor's funding costs, was R2E5m for the six months to 31
December 2002

Retail banking achiaved excelient growth with 8 strong performance trom Nedbank, Peoples
Bank was negatively impactod by the edditional microloan provisions, but otherwisa producod
8 good performance. in commercial banking Cape of Good Hope Bank had an outstanding
year, while the atherwise good resufts of Nedbank’s Commercial Division wera adversefy
impacted by tha i SME book i Comporata and banking grew
modestly in tough markets.

The acquisitions of tmperia) Bank and Gerard Private Bank performea exceptionafty well,
contributing growth in core eamings of 95% and 81% respectively. The aliance with Old
Mutual {(bancassurance initiatives) progressed steadily, whie the aliances with the JD Group/
Capital One {microlending) and Pick 'n Pay Go Banking continue to devolop, but aro stifl
making losses, The Pick 'n Pay Go Banking initiative is progressing well and new account
openings are growing rapidly. We are confident of achieving satistactory returns from our
alliances aver the longer term.

Shareholders’ funds and capital adequacy
Sharehoiders' funds grew to R18,1bn {2001: A15.7bn). notwithstanding the writedowns of
investments and transiation losses. Together with the new prefercnco share capital of R2bn
and subortinated-gebt instruments of R7,6bn (2001; R3,8bn), total statutory capital of A27,7on
{2001: R19.50n} represents an overali capital adequacy of 11,0% (2001: 11,4%), above the
statutory requirement of 10%. Primary capital stands at 7,0% 2001: 8,6%}.




Advances growth 34%
Return on equity 21,9%
B Return on assets 1,57%
Efficiency ratio 55,4%

Core earnings up 9% to R3 366 million
Core earnings per share up 4% to 1 330cps

Total assats (Rbn)

Core earnings per share {cents)
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. Py . N . . %  Dec2002  Dec 2001 Dac 2002 Doc 2001
Accounting policies Financial highlights s Rm - mm  Cash flow statement Re e
The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis, except for certain -
ivestments that are canied at fair value. and comply in ol material respects With SA Gaap,  Selected returns Cash tiows rom operating activities 2748 520
The accounting policies of BoE have been realigned with those of Nadcor. The accounting  Headiine earnings Rm) @2 2585 3783 e fromm —
policies applicdt are consistent with thoss of the previous ysar, except for the fistlime  Headine eernings per share {contst @5 1oz 1574 Cash recsived from clienta 20 328 23210
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depraciation of investment properties. Tha impact of this changa in the basis of accounting is  CO7 €aMINgS per share (cents)l N 4 1330 1284 Dividends recetved 73 e
116t materi, Beiurn on varage sharsholders’funds (%) 2.8 206 Dividencs paid 1 282} 035
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Work has boon 1in preparatian for the of Standard AC 133 = oninterest revenue to totat income (%) 524 400  Met decmasafincroase) in operating funds 802 @ 492)
Financial & - which applies to Nedcor with effeCt  gifciancy ratio (3) 554 52.6  Taxation paid 768 356)
":l:’ ! Ja*f‘w‘/mm; K“;uslmm“dﬂfd“ “‘m"“‘:s :"d“‘“‘“‘ ’3";":8"?6"2“""“” its in ;gw Net interest income to Interest-eaming assets (%) 288 3,15 Net cash utilsed in investing activities (8458) (3085
o st aciates e resct vl f M cateciors. T apecaton of s sapdarg | LoiEie e proisins ot e (1) 2 33 Natcash povided by ncingecties s o
will resAL::l :r;érueased vn:i'atiliry in reported e‘ammg& Nedco; wib ﬁsr;(Jrepog oﬁna shareholders ?:t‘;:i‘am“ acuity By 2 212 1571y Netincroase in subordiated det 3078 2248
g i ts interi its for the six months to une . i &
under in respect of ts inteim resuits o Deposit, cument and other accounts (Rm) % 27083 177152 ::: ”m::;’le shares Esusd :::s 403
C s eas o Advances and other accounts (Rm} 34 202850 151 329 proceeds co shases lasued
Strategic initiatives Total assets () % zates 157665 :
Nedcor has stated for same years that its primary focus is on banking in South Afica - hence  Assets under management {off-nalance-sheet) (Rr) 124 342 asgz5  Netincreaseldecraase) in cash and short-term funda b U 882}
the cautious approach to banking activities intematiorally and in Africa. In addition, we simto  Capital ratio (%) 1,0 11,4  Cashand shori-term funds at beginning of year 1we7e 12 850
laverage our substantial investmant in technology locaily and abroad. Capttal ralio - tier 1 {%) 70 88 Cash and short-term funds 3t end of year 18 807 10 978
Our stated strategic objective in recent years has been to achieve (ow-cost, quahty cient  Bhare statistcs
grawth, both organically and through alliances with best-of-breed partners. Our aim is o Number of shares in issue (m} 2706 2443 i
ncreasa the number of delivery. channels and products evailabia to clients, improve service  Weightad average number of sharea {m) 2530 2408 State ment Of,Chan.ges n Dec 2002*  Ooc 2001™
quality and increase voiume throughpit into our scalable technology platforms. Earnings per share, including exceptiona! items {cants) 389 s shareholders equity am Rm
The merger with BOE and the consoquent restructuring of tha has been the most  Fully diuled waighted verage number of shares (m} 2845 2428 : "
significant evert for Nedcer in mc;«:q;m and Relly aﬁgns mg;;pe suategles. Another Dilutoc headine earrings pee sharo (cents) @ 1016 1560 Ordinary share copital n 22
strategic objective is 10 leverage Nedcor's core in the Dividends par share (cenis) 3 515 S00  Baiance a1 baginning of year %2 240
arena and so create 1 racunting, external income stream. Good progross is baing made with  Dvidond cover (imes) 26 28 Shares Issued during year ol 2
our intarnational initiative, Shave price (cants) (1) 11110 12420 Salo of treasury shares by subsidiary 3
W are pleasad to have the prominent markst position that we now snjoy. With BoE Nedoor  Price-earnings ratio (ristorical) 10,8 79 Sheres acaquind by subsidiary i
Ras achioved a scale that will aliow us to improve our overall dlient offering in @ cost-effective  Mrket capitalisation Rbn) {0 30,1 B3 Ordinary share premium ) T35
way. We also retain the ability to exterd our footprint further through our alliances. This bodes % Dec 2002 Dos 2001~ e at beginning of yaas T <
ility.
el for our fuure market presence and profbily. Income statement change Am R S o g e 202 a
interest incoma el 282 17 186 Share issue expenses 9) @
Prospects el eperge @ 183 1918 Sunotvesseyseres by subcay -
The Dimansion Data writedawns and tha SME and microlanding provisions have been int P Sh, irnd baidiary 1 4
disappointing setbacks in our drive to expand into new markets end build our capial base. :::,;fxf:xe ;g :g : :ﬁ ares accuired by w_ 1159 7
Haweves, these are now largely behind us and were not inherent in our ongoing 8GN COTE  Foreign exchange translalion o) 1% Prafarence share capital and premium 1687 -
businesses. Notwithstanding thase setbacks, we produced core profits of B3 388bn (2001: = Shares issupd dufing yoar
R3 0937m) and. over five years, our total assets have grown from A1 17bn to R274bn and tota 101! income . 7 12218 a8 gharg tasun expenses
Sharehotders” equity rom RS, 1on to A20,1bn. Specific and gensral provisions -] 1778 1058
The solid performances of Nogcor's core businesses end our strong balance shedt posionus  opio0al penes sk provision {reversed)ratsed 400 400 Noa-disirinutable resarves 28 o
wedl for the futire. The BoE marger and group recrganisation have been optimally planned to Income after spacific and general risk provisions: 8 10840 9860 Balance at beginning of year 703_1 516
enthance thesa prospects., Operating expenses 35 7334 5416 Tonsfer tom disiributable reserves 245 14
Technalogy investrnent is a key enabling capabiity in banking and Nedcor has made signficant Merger and SXpENSes - 168 Foreign currency ransiation ' il 263
invastments in technology projects over the past fow years, The bulk of these projects is now Profit lmm operations belors exceptional capital tems. @n 3313 4544 Roleasa of resesves previousty nol available 1332} 172y
in uss or in advanced stages of commissioning and represents an investment for the futwe,  EXCePtional capital isms 0783 Q685  Other mavemants 10 (18
The mergor with BoE and tha group rationalisation now provide the enlarged Nedicor Group Net capita! joss on invesiment in Dimension Data {1080} @ 288) Distributable resarves 12023 12 559
v'::wh;nhsv oooormmua to I&vafage ecommres of sca!e in orer to mcrsas::dfﬁgenmaﬁ wﬁ‘z a,‘,d \mpairment D‘dMiL (501) @73) Baance af beginning of yoar 1255 e
e o o e of e et e ars GG ant a0 the At potental of ot Mo ot vnteaton o b range noesoning pocy - ya sfstment "3
technology platforms. tmpaimment of investmants and of property and equipment (118) @y T’_:l“:“’ ‘: ot ”L ibvtctio 984 ‘:"‘
Nedcor's muitibrand stratagy and strategic alliances have assisted us 1o gain market share in o to non esenves (246} 1)
recent years, Now these have been augmentad by the acdition of BoE products and brands.  Profi from operations 152 539 Dividends to shareholders R
The key to further growth, howaver, is outsianding client service, and our now operational  Attrlbatabls esrnings of associates (i) 182 11 Other movementa 8 ue
structure should aBow us 1o become a group truty focused on and bullt around owr clients., Profit before taxation 582 1120
Tatal shareholders’ equi 4
That we have come through this demanding period S0 well is a tribute to our staif. They have  Taxation [+ 580 e L =y 18003 14 830
been dedicated to ‘making it happen' and remain the true differentiators of our business, They  Taxstion: Merger and reorganisation expenses 23} .
ars entrusiastc sbout the potertial of tha naw Nedcor Group and this shouid continue 1o Taxaton: capltal itenss 82 i Segmental analysis oo 202" e 2001~
manifest itseif in benefits for aur clients and other stakeholders. Profit sfier taxation 197 177 - core earnings « an w“ am
Wa befieve that our strategy affers low-risk growth opportunities and focuses on markets and  Income attributable lo minority sharehoiders 103 33 164
::z}mvn that lig vethin l:;grg;o;s z:;npewes x aiso believe that wo have set the o broflt for year 54 1 Y OPERATION
in the industry end the country, R . % Dec2002+  Decomor-  Pein banking »
The challenge for 2003 and beyond is successhully to implement the merger and i Headiine aarnings change Rm Rim Necbank
pians to reaise the anticipated synergies and ta defiver an enhanced client experience and real  income attributable 1o sharcholdars £ 13 Peoplas Bank 29
shareholder value. These are medium-tem processes and, while 2003 is lkely to be a pasitive  Add back: Commercial banking 1] 448 14
year, # will also Ibe a period of transition as the merger bads down. Tho full bensfits of the  Exceptional capitat itsms 1783 3605 Nedbark 256
merger are Ekely to be more avident in 2004 and beyond. Taxation: exceptional capilal tems (192) 171 Imperial Bank! 7
Dividend Hoadlina o2mings @32 2585 3788 Cape of Gaod Hope Bank 20
te and investmen ¥ 5 39
Notica s hercby given that e final dividend of 310 cents per ordinery sham has beon declarsd ~ COT@ €8MNINgS Corporate and invesimen! barkeg 123
in respect of the year enced 31 December 2002. Headine earmings 2585 3789 ::““I‘" gand
Trading in the STRATE envionment raquires sotiement within fiva business days. In accordance  Exciude: i o nvestment
with the sattement procedures of STRATE Nedcor hes determined the last day for tracing to  FOreign exchange transtation losses/(gains) 1041 {10%)  T4&0Qinvesiments [ ]
pasticipate in the final dividend to be Thursdzy, 20 March 2003. The shares will commence ;‘:;E:""&‘j genoead sk provision i e 400 |nsernat funaing and group operatians 28 7
m’“"“ 'gpz;nm"“”wm"g"':de"‘mmy ;;”[‘;;";fﬁ: o oD dato vl be Fricay, 28 March 1o, stion on erger and reorganisation expenses 22 intarnstional finciuding Atrica) g} 485 1
may not be Ny o e Monday, 24 March Care sarnings 9 3368 3093 Nedbank . 12 3
twee - Gerrard Private Bank 58 2
zaoa and Friday, 26 March 2003, both days inchusive. Balance sheet %  Dec2002' Doc2001”  Nedcor tnvestment Bank! 207 3
change Am Am o Py 7
For end on behatf of the boarg Assats South Africn 406 12
Cash and short-term funds 51 16 807 10978 pniermationat 13 3
Other short-temm securlties 2 14 987 VA puding 1258} )
Government and public sector securities 16 14 647 12 827
CF Liebenberg RCM Laubscher Advances ang other assets 34 202 850 151329 Cora aarnings k] 3368 100
: P ; Insurance assets t0a 7891
Chaimman iof Executive BY GEQGRAPHY
G Ex Associste and other investments 1 6833 5821 goutn Afrlca 7 2788 & 2595 84
e
12 February 2003 reperty and squlpment = zase 209 Nedow, excluding BoE 26% 78] [ 2ses a
intangible assets: Bok
Rogistered office ‘Computar software end capitalised developrment costs 3 1638 12T ding 06 ‘;)
Nedcor Limitad, Nedoor Sanctton, 135 Rivonis Road, Sandown, 2196 Goodwil 0 a8 1272 el
PO Box 1144, Johennesburg, 2000 Customers’ for acceptances 15 1120 973 Restof Atrica 132 212 [ nt 4
. on Total assets 3 273784 197685 Rastof the world 0 306 9 381 ]
ransfor secreta "
Computershare tavestor Services Limitod, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesturg, 2001 Shareholdens” equity and liabilites Nadcar, exchuding Bof m l H
PO Box 1053, Johannesburg, 2000 Ordtinary shareholders’ equity 15 17 048 14 830 BoE
Praterenco shase copial and premium 1987 N 9 100
Directors Minority shereholders’ interest 1089 oy Soresmroinge 3% 2093 i
CF L (Chairman), PG Jouben (Deputy Chaimman), Prot MM Katz (Vice-chairman), Total sharehaiders' equity and mincrity Interest 28 2012 157 Reviewed
RCM Lautsscher (Chief Executive), CUW Ball, TA Boardman, Dr |} Botha, WAM Clewlow, Depasil and other Habilities 34 237 083 177152 “Audiied
RG Cottret, BE Davison, N Dennis (British), Prof B Figaji, BJS Hore, MJ Lavett, JB Magwaza,  insurance hunds 100 7891 1 Basod on core sarnings cakasation, arduding ef orceptions’ tems
WE Mikwanazi, §G Moris, DGS Muller, ML Ndiavu, PF Nhicka, TH Nyasui, JVF Roberts Subordinated-debt instrumants 88 7568 3ses 1 Nt of rincnities
{British), AA Routledge, CML Savage, JH Sutciifte (British) Liabiliies under pcceptances 1120 873 . .
—— — The segmental analysss is prmardy Desed o1 manaemen! oparating AAOTE and ignores bounaaries af e kel
Company Secrstary: GS Nisnaber Yota) sharcholders' equity and liabilities 3 273784 197655 e, gimes anw rastesnd, whave naceisry, ia sttt & compurison, Capiti & Aocaiodt 19
sepmens based On the ralRisd (k- woig TR a3560S in s of e Renks ACt classifations ang worghtings. The
Guaraniees on betall of customers excudod from assets 11966 11 035

#apacts of capital alocation e tnsder Pricing of SUDPOT 00S1T Detwiwn SEITINNT &Y unchy roguler v

(AN IE - LI A ]
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Nedcor posts core growth from R3.1bn to R3.4bn in a challenging year

Solid core banking performance with organic market share gains
Advances grow 34% to R203bn

South Africa’s largest banking group by domestic assets with R274bn
Year of strategic progress, centred on BoE merger

BoE merger and group integration progressing well

On target to reap integration synergies of R905m a year by 2005

e & @ o o o

Despite a challenging industry environment, banking group Nedcor Ltd delivered solid
core growth for the year to 31 December 2002, a year which also saw it merge with BoE
Ltd to become South Africa’s largest banking group by domestic assets.

Core earnings rose 9% to R3 366m (2001 - R3 093m). Core earnings per share, due to
the dilutory effect of new shares issued for the acquisitions of BoE and Nedcor
Investment Bank Holdings (NIB), grew by 4% to 1 330 cents (2001 - 1 284 cents).

The volatility in the rand exchange rate again impacted Nedcor's headline earnings. In .
2001, the substantial decline in the rand from R7.55 to R12.05 to the US dollar resulted
in translation gains of R1.1bn from integrated operations and contributed to headline
earnings growing 26%, well above core growth. In 2002, the strengthening in the rand
from R12.05 to R8.60 to the US dollar resulted in a reciprocal translation loss of R1bn.
For mainly this reason, headline earnings were R2 585m, down 32% from R3 789m in
2001, giving a headline earnings per share of 1 022 cents (2001 — 1 574 cents).

Commenting on the results, chief executive Richard Laubscher, said: “2002 was a
mixed year for the Nedcor group. The performance fell below our expectations, largely
due to the decision to write off the SME business banking non-performing loans ahead
of the anticipated provisioning, but we have maintained good momentum in our
underlying business. On the other hand, during the year we made huge strategic
progress with the merger with BoE and the reorganisation of the group.

“As we enter 2003, | am confident that we have the scale, skills, the balance sheet and
the strategic platform which will allow us to make real progress in the years ahead
towards delivering an enhanced customer experience and real shareholder value. This is
a medium-term process and while 2003 is likely to be a positive year, it will also be a
period of transition as the merger beds down. The full benefits are likely to be more
evident in 2004 and beyond.”

The highlight of the group’s busy year was the R7.7bn acquisition of BoE. The deal
enabled Nedcor to make significant strides in implementing its growth strategy of
focusing on the South African market and increasing transaction volume through its
technology platforms. The transaction was funded by cash and the issue of new shares.

BoE was the catalyst for the group’s overall reorganisation which entailed the integration
of BoE, NIB, Cape of Good Hope Bank, and parts of Peoples Bank into Nedbank. Parts



of BoE will go into Peoples Bank later in 2003. The process involved Nedcor acquiring
the minority shareholders’ interests in NIB for R968m, funded by new Nedcor shares,
and which resulted in the delisting of NIB.

Nedcor's management has devoted much time and attention to planning the group’s
reorganisation and the realisation of the anticipated integration synergies. The
management team was realigned at an early stage of the restructure, with a minimal loss
~ of executives, to manage the group going forward. To date, over 20 000 managers and
staff have been formally appointed to or confirmed in their new positions.

The net recurring synergies anticipated from the BoE merger and the group’s integration
are expected to be R110m before tax in 2003 growing to R905m before tax per annum
by 2005. The full benefit being obtained from 2006 onwards. Many synergy targets have
already been achieved. The targets currently being worked towards include rationalising
the brands from 20 to 12, and cutting the number of office premises from 49 to 19 and
the number of branches from 694 to 601. Staff numbers show a reduction of 700, largely
due to attrition. : '

The Nedcor group's financial results for the year under review include the consolidation
of BoE for six months, and the buy-out of NIB minorities three months before year end.

Net interest income (NIll) increased by 20% to R6 300m (2001 — R5 268m). While
advances were boosted 34% to R203bn (2001 - R151bn), the more muted growth in Nil
is largely due to the funding cost of BoE. Non-interest revenue rose by 37% to R6 929m
(2001 — R5 054m) on high organic and acquisitive growth in commission and fee
income, and from bancassurance revenues.

Expenses were R7 334m (2001 — R5 416m) with the bulk of the increased costs arising
from the consolidation of BoE. Excluding BoE, Nedcor increased its expenses by 13%
keeping its cost-to-income ratio flat.

The group follows a conservative provisioning policy on non-performing loans and the
net provision coverage is 157% (2001 — 147%). As announced in the trading statement
to the market on 21 November 2002, extra provisions were considered necessary in two
specific areas, namely a ring-fenced, non-performing small and medium enterprises
(SME) book and microlending. The SME book has since been sold requiring a further
provision of R66m. Nedcor has always adopted a cautious approach to microlending
and does not have a large exposure (unsecured microloans of R972m represent only
0.5% of total advances). Nevertheless, the group did not escape the industry’'s troubles
last year and recognised provisions of R225m, including the BoE microlending book,
(2001 — R30m), some of this exposure is shared with our partners.

Nedcor is soundly capitalised with an overall capital adequacy of 11% (2001 — 11.4%),
above the statutory requirement of 10%. Primary capital stands at 7% (2001 — 8.6%).

A maintained final dividend of 310 cents (2001 — 310 cents) has been declared, making
a total dividend of 515 cents (2001 — 500 cents) for the year, at a dividend cover of 2.6
times core earnings per share (2001 — 2.6 times).

Commenting on empowerment issues, Laubscher said that the Peoples Bank
empowerment initiatives have proven to be very successful and have been recognised



as such with Peoples Bank receiving many empowerment awards. The empowerment
deal with AKA Capital in the asset management business is another successful initiative.

Issued by: Nedcor Ltd

Contact: Nedcor Group Investor and Media Relations
Gayle Rodrigues
+27 11 294 0372
+27 83 307 6484



‘Nedcor reports 9% growth in core earnings, 32% decline in

headline earnings after translation losses

2002 has been another challenging and eventful year for Nedcor and for the
South African banking industry. The merger with BoE Limited (BoE) during
the year created the opportunity for a major restructuring and realignment of
the Nedcor Group which culminated in the legal and practical merger of four
banks to form the new Nedbank Limited (Nedbank) on 1 January 2003 (“legal

day one”).

The industry experienced extreme volatility in rand exchange rates, four
successive interest rate hikes, troubles in the micro-lending industry, liquidity
stress in or failure of some smaller banks and referred difficulties from

unsettied global markets.

Within this industry environmént, Nedcor had an active year and restructured
the Group to establish new platforms for higher levels of client service,
competitiveness, efficiency and profitability. The merger with BoE fits ideally
into Nedcor's growth strategy and most of BoE’s business units align well with
those of Nedcor. In addition, Nedcor's scaleable technology platforms will
benefit from the transaction volume increases introduced by BoE, and there is
potential for significant cost synergies from the merging of duplicated

services.



Key strategic developments during the year were:

Acquisition of BoE

The feature of the year was the acquisition of BoE with effect from 2 July
2002. BoE was acquired at a cost of R7.7bn and was funded through a
combination of cash (R4bn subordinated loan notes raised and R1.5bn
from own resources).and equity (R2.2bn). After fair value acquisition
adjustmenté and accounting policy alignments totalling R1.1bn, BoE's at
acquisition asset value was R4.9bn, resulting in goodwill of R2.8bn

arising on acquisition.

Integration of banking subsidiaries

The acquisition of BoE was the catalyst for an overall Nedcor Group
reorganisation which entailed the integration of BoE, Nedcor Investment
Bank ('NIB’), Cape of Good Hope Bank (‘CoGHB’) and parts of Peoples
Bank Limited into Nedbank with effect from 1 January 2003, and parts of
BoE into Peoples Bank later in 2003.

Acquisition of NIB minorities
As part of the integration, Nedcor acquired the outstanding minority
shareholders interests in NIB for R968m, with effect from 1 October

2002, which was settled by the issue of new Nedcor shares.

Enhanced capital structures

In order to fund the acquisitions of BoE and the NIB minorities and to
optimise and restructure our capital, Nedcor undertook three major
capital raisings totalling R9.2bn during the year. These comprised the
subordinated loan note raising of R4bn in July 2002, the listings of
R3.2bn Nedcor shares in July and October 2002, and a listed non-

redeemable non-cumulative Nedbank preference share issue of R2bn in

| December 2002.



New operating structures

The group was reorganised into new operating structures which will
conduct business under three distinctive primary bank brands, namely
Nedbank, Nedbank Corporate and Peoples Bank. All leadership
positions were confirmed at an early stage of the merger. Over 20 000
managers and staff have been formally appointed to or confirmed in
their new positions in terms of the merger requirements of the new

Labour Relations Act.

Wealth management rationalisation

With a view to rationalising the wealth management activities of
Nedbank, NIB and BoE, NIB acquired the remaining 50% of FT NIBAM
from Franklin Templeton with effect from 1 October 2002 for a

consideration of R180m.

The wealth management activities were classiﬂed into two focus areas,
namely private clients and institutional asset m_anagemént. The private
client activities, both domestically and internationally, will continue as a
Nedcor / Old Mutual joint venture operating under the BoE brand. BoE's
South African institutional asset management, a business requiring
scale, has been sold with effect from 1 January 2003 to empowerment
partners spearheaded by AKA Capital Limited and partnered by Old
Mutual and Peoples Bank.

Old Mutual Bank joint venture

The structure of the Old Mutual Bank joint venture, which entails the
merger of the Permanent Bank deposit taking activities and
infrastructure with Old Mutual Bank, was revised during the year. It now
operates under the Old Mutual Bank brahd as a division of Nedbank
with effect from 1 January 2003. Its primary focus will be to deliver

banking products to Old Mutual clients.
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Merger and integration planning

Much time and attention has been devoted to planning for the

integration and realisation of the anticipated merger synergies.

Management is highly aware of the integration risks flowing from the

merger and have re-organised management responsibilities and
resources to ensure that both the merger process and ongoing
operatiohs are properly resourced. Integration milestones have been set
and are being closely monitored, with progress currently ahead of initial

targets.

The integration process continues to go well and the advent of “legal
day one” proceeded smoothly. Senior and key staff losses are minimal,
asset growth is robust, deposit return flows are strong and liquidity has

been optimised.

Net recurring synergies, including funding and capital efficiencies and
after deducting integration costs, are expected to grow from R110m
before tax in 2003 to R905m before tax from 2006 onwards. The

synergies are planned from the following areas:

At Target Reduction | Current

Inception 2005 % status
Bank licences 8 4 50 Done
Treasuries 10 ’ 3 70 Done
Brands 4 20 12 40 In progress
Office premises 49 19 61 In progress
Branches 694 601 13 In progress
Products 388 223 43 In progress
IT systems 276 176 33 In progress
Staff (permanent 25 700 21 850 15 25 100
& temporary)
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o Acquisition of Planet Finance

Planet Finance, the asset based finance business of the former
Saambou Bank, was acquired by Nedcor’s subsidiary Imperial Bank
Limited with effect from 1 September 2002 for approximately R850m.
Imperial Bank also won a mandate to collect a book of a further R1bn on

behalf of the receiver of Saambou Bank.

Commentary on results

Core earnings (ie excluding translation gains and losses and merger and
restructuring costs) grew by 9% to R3 366m (2001 — R3 093m), comprising
7% growth in South African operations and 16% growth in international
operations. Core earnings per share, due to the dilutory effect of new shares
iss.ued for the acquisitions of BoE and NIB, grew at a lower rate of 4% to
1330cps (2001 — 1285c¢ps).

Headline earnings declined by 32% to R2 585m (2001 — R3 789m), due
mainly to the effects of the volatility of the rand exchange rate which caused

translation losses in 2002 compared to translation gains in 2001.

Attributable earnings increased to R984m (2001 — R13m), after providing for
exceptional capital losses totalling R1.6bn (2001 — R1.7bn).

Return on equity increased to 21,9% (2001 — 20,6%) while return on assets
decreased to 1,57% (2001 — 1,83%).

A final dividend of 310cps (2001 — 310cps) has been declared, making total
dividends of 515cps (2001 — 500cps) for the year, at a dividend cover of 2,6
times (2001 — 2,6 times) based on core earnings and 2,0 times (2001 - 3,1

times) based on headline earnings.
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The consolidation of BoE distorts the comparability of Nedcor's organic
performance compared to 2001, However, BoE’s results are separately
disclosed in the segmental report. The commentary below seeks to give a
perspective of Nedcor's overall performance, both including and excluding
BoE.

Advances and net interest income

Advances grew by 34% (15% excluding BoE) while net interest income grew
by a more muted 20% (12% excluding BoE) to R6.3bn (2001 — R5.3bn). This
resulted from pressure on margins by virtue of the liquidity squeeze that
occurred during the period of industry turbulence, and also from lower
endowment income due to the redeployment of cash invested into BoE,
Imperial Bank, other joint ventures and cash dividends paid. BoE was under
liquidity stress when it was acquired and this clearly impacted adversely on
interest margins. However, we are pleased to report strong returns of deposit

flows and good progress in restoring margins.

Non-interest revenue

Non-interest revenue, excluding translation gains / losses and exceptional
items, grew strongly by 37% (15% excluding BoE) to R6.9bn (2001 -
R5.1bn). The foundation for this increase was pleasing growth of 45% (20%
excluding BoE) in commission and fee income, svupplemented by good growth
in bancassurance revenues and trading income derived from exchange and

securities dealing.
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Translation effects

In 2001, the substantial decline in the rand exchange rate from R7.55 to
R12.05 to the US$ at 31 December 2001, resulted in translation gains
totalling R1.1bn from integrated operations accruing to headline earnings. In
2002, the strengthening in the rand exchange rate from R12.05 to R8.60 to
the US$ at 31 December 2002 resulted in a reciprocal translation loss of
R1bn.

This loss was partially relieved by the release at 30 June 2002 of a general
risk provision of R400m created in 2001 to cover unidentified but inherent

risks that could arise from the exceptional rand depreciation of 2001.

In addition, translation losses of R411m (2001 — translation gains of R263m)
resulting from conversion of non-integrated foreign entities have been taken

directly to reserves.

Specific and general risk provisions

The credit climate held steady and arrears trends generally improved during
2002, despite increased interest rates. Nedcor is cognisant, however, of the
need to adopt a conservative provisioning policy and this is reflected in the
income statement charge increase of 68%, including BoE and additional
provisions for the ring-fenced Business Banking small and medium
enterprises (SME) book and the micro-loan sector. Non-performing loans,
including BoE, represent 3,9% (2001 — 4,6%) of total advances and the net
provision coverage, after allowing for expected recoveries, is conservative at
157% (2001 — 147%). Balance sheet provisions to total advances are 3,1%
(2001 - 3,3%) at 31 December 2002. |

In the trading statement of 21 November 2002 Nedcor reported on the need
for additional provisions in two areas, namely a ring-fenced, non-performing

SME book, and in the micro-lending sector.



Additional provisions of R6546m charged for these areas have had a material,
but largely non-recurring, negative effect on 2002 core earnings. Both of
these experiences occurred in initiatives aimed at expanding our activities in
non-traditional markets. Revised policies are in place to avoid repetition of

these losses.

Firstly, Nedcor has an exposure to SME’s through an initiative in the late
nineties focused on developing this sector, which is key to development of the
economy. This sector has special characteristics with a potential to yield
higher returns, but at increased risk. High growth was experienced and, by
the start of 2002, the total book had grown to R3.2bn. However, this included
non-performing exposures totalling R700m, which were set aside in 1999 to

be separately managed as a ring-fenced collections book.

During 2002, it became apparent that collections were falling well below those
previously anticipated and a full review of this book was conducted. As a
consequence, we reported in the trading statement that provisions, the timing
of which had historically been created under a policy of legal certainty, would
be accelerated in 2002. This would result in an additional charge of R400m
(R2A80m after tax), further to the R190m already budgeted, against 2002

earnings.

The ring-fenced SME book has now been sold and the sale price was
determined at the present value of estimated future collections, net of

collection costs. The adjustment of provisions to recognise the sale price

‘necessitated a further provision of R66m, bringing the total ring-fenced SME

book provisions for 2002 to R656m (2001 — R75m). This effectively
accelerates provisions and collection costs which would have been charged
in future years. The ring-fenced collection operation has been closed and, in
terms of the sale agreement, Nedcor may recoup some losses if collections

are achieved in excess of certain thresholds.



Secondly, Nedcor has adopted a cautious approach to micro-lending and
does not have a large exposure to this market. We nevertheless did not
escape the troubles of this industry and have recognised bad debt provisions
totalling R225m (2001 — R30m), some of which are shared with our partners,
in respect of total micro-loan exposures. Provisions to unsecured micro-loan
advances stand at 34% (2001 -~ 9%).

Nedcor's exposure in micro-fending, and to retailers active in micro-lending,
has increased with the acquisition of BoE. However, unsecured exposures of
R972m (2001 — R377m) to the micro-loan industry represent only 0,X% of
total advances. Our micro-loan exposure continues to be closely watched as
this sector has clearly experienced stressful times and stringent provisioning

policies and monitoring practices are in place.

In all other major businesses provisions have reduced in line with arrears
trends. We are naturally concerned about our bad experiences in the SME
and micro-lending sectors. Both are sectors we should engage, but they
clearly require a modified approach and methodology to ensure that our

negative experiences are not repeated.

Expenses

Expenses increased by 35% (13% excluding BoE), with our efficiency ratio
declining to 55,4% (2001 — 52,5%), but remaining constant at 52.5%
excluding BoE.
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Taxation

The charge for taxation, excluding exceptional items and the recognition of
the Peoples Bank deferred tax asset of R185m, remained constant at R765m
(2001 — R772m). On the same basis, the effective rate of taxation was 18,6%
(2001 — 20,1%), assisted by lower levels of taxation on offshore income and

increased dividend income.

Core earnings benefited by R130m (R185m before allowing for minority
interests) from the non-recurring recognition of a deferred tax asset in respect
of unutilised tax losses in Peoples Bank. This was required in terms of SA
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) because the positive profit
record of Peoples Bank for the past two years’ reinforced the probability that

the tax losses will be utilised by future taxable income.

Equity-accounted income and income attributable to minority
shareholders

Equity accounted income of R162m (2001 — R181m) declined mainly due to
the sale of former associate NedTel Cellular in the second half of 2001. The
discontinuation of equity accounting of Zimbabwean associate Merchant Bank
of Central Africa, with effect from 1 July 2001, also contributed to the decline
in equity accounted income. Minority interests at R333m (2001 — R164m)
doubled following the consolidation of Gerrard Private Bank for a full year
(2001 - seven months) and the first time inclusion of the 30% Peoples Bank
empowerment minority with effect from 1 January 2002. These increases
were partially offset by the cessation of minority interests in NIB from 1
October 2002.
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Merger and restructuring costs

Once off merger and restructuring costs tbtalling R205m after tax (2001 —

R Nil) have been charged to the income statement. These comprise R86m in
respect of the Nedcor Group restructuring and integration and R119m for the
closure and restructure of the Permanent Bank operations in anticipation of its
joint venture with Old Mutual Bank. These costs are excluded in the

determination of core earnings.

Exceptional capital items

The market value of Nedcor's investment of 103 million shares in Dimension
Data plc, listed on the London Stock Exchange, has declined further and has
been marked to market at its 31 December 2002 price of R4.02 per share
(2001 — R14.50 per share).

Other exceptional items comprise goodwill amortisation of R501m (2001 —
R273m), including R144m for BoE, fair value impairment write-downs of
R119m (2001 — R34m) for fixed assets and other investments and R58m for

losses on discontinued operations and sales of investments.
Segmental reporting

Nedcor's South African operations contributed R2 787m (2001 — R2 596m) to
core earnings while international operations, which were influenced by lower
rand translated earnings, contributed R578m (2001 — R497m). The net
contribution from BoE's domestic and international operations, after deducting

Nedcor’s funding costs, was R265m for the six months to 31 December 2002.
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Retail Banking achieved excellent growth with a strong performance from
Nedbank. Peoples Bank was negatively impacted by the additional micro-loan
provisions, but otherwise produced a good performance. In Commercial
Banking, Cape of Good Hope Bank had an outstanding year while the
otherwise good results of Nedbank's Commercial Division were adversely
impacted by the ring-fenced SME book provisions. Corporate and Investment

Banking grew modestly in tough markets.

The acquisitions of Imperial Bank and Gerrard Private Bank vperformed
exceptionally well, contributing growth in core earnings of 123% and 83%
respectively. The alliance with Old Mutual (bancassurance initiatives)
progressed steadily while the alliances with the JD Group / Capital One
(micro-lending) and Pick ‘n Pay Go Banking continue to develop but are still
loss making. The Pick ‘n Pay Go Banking initiative is progressing well and
new account opénings are growing rapidly. We are confident of achieving

satisfactory returns from our alliances over the longer term.

Shareholders' funds and capital adequacy

Shareholders’ funds grew to R18.1bn (2001 — R15.7bn), notwithstanding the
write downs of investments and translation losses. Together with the new
preference share capital of R2bn and subordinated debt instruments of
R7.6bn (2001 — R3.8bn), total statutory capital of R27.7bn (2001 — R19.5bn)
represents an overall capital adequacy of 11,0% (2001 — 11,4%), above the

statutory requirement of 10%. Primary capital stands at 7,0% (2001 — 8,6%).
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Accounting policies

The financial statements are prepared on the histdrical cost basis, except for
certain investments that are carried at fair value, and comply in all material
respects with SA GAAP. The accounting policies for Bok have been realigned
with those of Nedcor. The accounting policies applied are consistent with
those of the previous year except for the first time application of Accounting
Standard AC 135 — “Investment property” - which requires depreciation of
investment properties; the impact of this change in basis of accounting is not

material.

Work has been undertaken in preparation for the application of Accounting
Standard AC 133 - “Financial instruments: recognition and measurement” -
which applies to Nedcor with effect from 1 January 2003. This standard
introduces additional fair value requirements in the valuation of assets and
liabilities and requires extensive revision of bad debt provisioning to a basis
which estimates the net present value of future collections. The application of
this standard will result in increased volatility in reported earnings. Nedcor will
first report to shareholders under AC 133 in respect of its interim results for
the six months to 30 June 2003.

Strategic initiatives

Nedcor has stated for some years that our primary focus is on banking in
South Africa, hence our cautious approach to banking activities internationally
and in Africa. In addition, we aim to leverage our substantial investment in

technology locally and abroad.
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Our stated strategic objective in recent years has been to aéhieve low-cost,
quality client growth, both organically and through alliances with best-of-breed
partners. Our aim is to increase the number of delivery channels and products
available to clients, improve service quality and increase volume throughput

into our scaleable technology platforms.

The merger with BoE and the consequent restructuring of the Group has
been the most significant event for Nedcor in recent years and fully aligns
with these strategies. Another strategic objective is to leverage Nedcor’s core
processing competence in the international arena and so create a recurring,
external income stream. Good progress is being made on our international

initiative.

We are pleased to have the prominent market position that we now enjoy.
With BoE, Nedcor has achieved a scale that will allow us to improve our
overall customer offering, in a cost effective way. We also retain the ability to
further extend our footprint through our alliances. This bodes well for our

future market presence and profitability.

Prospects

The Dimension Data write downs and the SME and micro-iending provi'sions
have been disappointing set-backs in our drive to expand into new markets
and build our capital base. However, these are now largely behind us and
were not inherent to our ongoing traditional core businesses. Notwithstanding
these set-backs, we produced core profits of R3 366bn (2001 — R3 093m)
and, over five years, our total assets have grown from R117bn to R274bn and
shareholders funds from R9.1bn to R1S.1 bn.
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The solid performances of Nedcor’'s core businesses and our strong balance
sheet position us well for the future. The BoE merger and group restructure

have been optimally planned to enhance these prospects,

Technology investment is a key enabling capability in banking and Nedcor
has made significant investments in technology projects over the past few
year‘s. The bulk of these projects are now in use or in advanced stages of
commissioning and represent an investment for the future. The merger with -
BoE and the group rationalisation now provide the enlarged Nedcor Group
with further opportunities to leverage economies of scale in order to increase
efficiencies and reduce cost-to-income ratios. Furthermore, offshore
processing is poised to build its contribution on the back of this investment.

We are confident about the future potential of our technology platforms.

Nedcor's multi-brand strategy and strategic alliances have assisted us to gain
market share in recent years. Now these have been augmented by the
addition of BoE products and brands. The key to further growth, however, is
outstanding client service and our new operational structure should allow us

to become a group truly focussed on and built around our clients.

That we have come through this demanding period so well is a tribute to our
staff. They have been dedicated to “making it happen” and remain the true
differentiators of our business. They are enthusiastic about the potential of
the new Nedcor Group and this should continue to manifest itself in benefits

for our clients and other stakeholders.
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We believe that our strategy offers low-risk growth opportunities and focuses
on markets and initiatives that lie within our core competencies. We also
believe that we have set the foundations to succeséfully address the
impending and necessary transformation challenges in the industry and the

_country.

The challenge for 2003 and beyond is to successfully implement the merger
and integration plans to realise the anticipated synergies, and to deliver an
enhanced customer experience and real shareholder value. These are
medium term processes and, while 2003 is likely to be a positive year, it will
also be a period of transition as the merger beds down. The full benefits of

the merger are likely to be more evident in 2004 and beyond.

Dividend

Notice is hereby given that a final dividend of 310 cents per ordinary share

has been declared in respect of the year ended 31 December 2002.

Trading in the STRATE  environment requires settlement within five
business days. In accordance with the settlement procedures of STRATE
Nedcor has determined the last day for trading to participate in the final
dividend to be Thursday, 20 March 2003. The shares will commence trading
ex dividend on Monday, 24 March 2003, and the record date will be Friday,
28 March 2003. Payment will be made on Monday, 31 March 2003.

Share certificates may not be dematerialised or rematerialised between
Monday, 24 March 2003 and Friday, 28 March 2003 both days inclusive.
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Old Mutual's U.S. Asset Management Group
Reports Results for 2002

BOSTON--January 28, 2003--The U.S. asset management group of Old Mutual plc (LSE: OML)
today announced results for 2002 for its affiliated asset management firms. The group continued
to post strong relative performance, with assets under management declining 6.2% excluding
divestitures and cash flow, compared to a 22.1% decline for the year for the S&P 500 Index, a
31.5% decline for the NASDAQ Composite Index, a 15.0% decline for the Dow bnes Industrial
Average, and a 10.3% gain for the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index. In addition, the
firms in aggregate had net inflows of client assets of $5.1 billion, or 3.4% of 2001 yearend assets
of $149.7 billion, while divestitures of non-strategic firms accounted for a reduction of $14.5
billion or 9.7% of 2001 year-end assets. As of December 31, 2002, the group managed a total of
$127.0 billion. |

"Our firms achieved strong client inflows in 2002 for the second consecutive year, and we were
able to do so by executing more effectively with fewer investment affiliates,” said Scott Powers,
chief executive of Old Mutual's U.S. asset management operations. "In these very challenging
markets, we've benefited from the broad diversity of strategies employed by our firms and by our
managers' commitment to their investment disciplines. With strong performers across all major
asset classes and expanded distribution opportunities, we believe we're well positioned to serve

our clients regardless of which investment styles are in favor in 2003."

In 2002, Old Mutual's U.S. asset management group strengthened its senior management team
with the additions of Kevin Hunt as director of sales, marketing and product development and
Tom Turpin as chief operating officer. Mr. Hunt led the formation in October 2002 of Old
Mutual Investment Partners, a new subsidiary which performs sales, marketing and client-service
functions for Old Mutual firms in the managed account marketplace. Mr. Turpin is leading
efforts to fine-tune operations and facilitate best practices across the group in the finance, legal,

compliance, risk management, technology and human resources areas.

As part of the group's efforts to develop channel-specific distribution synergies among affiliates,
several new funds sub-advised by Old Mutual affiliates were introduced to Pilgrim Baxter's

PBHG Funds in December 2001 and January 2002, The sub-advised funds attracted $1.4 billion
in investor assets in 2002, led by PBHG IRA Capital Preservation sub-advised by Dwight Asset
Management and PBHG Clipper Focus sub-advised by Pacific Financial Research, to bring total



assets in the sub-advised funds to $1.8 billion on December 31, 2002. More information on the

investment strategies and performance of each of the funds is available at www.pbhgfunds.com.

The group continued to benefit in 2002 from cross-business synergies with Old Mutual partner
firms, with affiliates Dwight Asset Management and Analytic Investors providing value-added
investment strategies on behalf of Baltimore-based Fidelity & Guaranty Life Insurance Company,
acquired by Old Mutual in 2001.

In May 2002, the group announced a strategic alliance with Nuveen Investments through which
Nuveen will distribute investment capabilities of Old Mutual's affiliates on a sub-advisory basis.
The alliance was formed as part of a transaction through which Nuveen acquired from Old
Mutual Los Angeles-based NWQ Investment Management. In addition, divestitures of four other
firms were completed in 2002: Suffolk Capital Management was acquired by Ohio National
Financial Services of Cincinnati, and C.S. McKee & Company, Fiduciary Management

Associates and J.R. Senecal & Associates were acquired by each firm's management team.

In total, 17 firms have been divested since Old Mutual's acquisition of United Asset Management
Corp. in September 2000. Also in 2002, two affiliates managing a total of approximately $200
million in assets, Amsterdam-based Palladyne Asset Management and Paris-based Expertise
Asset Management, were transferred out of the U.S. asset management group and are now

reporting to Old Mutual Financial Services in London.

More information on Old Mutual's U.S. asset management group and its firms' investment teams
and strategies is available from the group's website at www.oldmutualus.com. The group's parent
is Old Mutual plc, an international financial services company based in London, with operations
in asset management, life assurance, banking and general insurance. The company is listed on the
London Stock Exchange with a market capitalization of approximately $4.9 billion as of January

27,2003. More information on Old Mutual is available at www.oldmutual.com.

Contact:
Media: Tucker Hewes, (212) 207-9451, tucker@hewescomm.com
Investors: James Poole, 44 (0)20 7569 0121, james.poole@omg.co.uk

#H#



Old Mutual ple
OLD MUTUAL ADOPTION OF ACHIEVED PROFITS ACCOUNTING

The Association of British Insurers (ABI) issued guidance for Achieved Profits
reporting in December 2001. Old Mutual will adopt Achieved Profits for
supplementary reporting in the 2002 preliminary results, replacing the Embedded
Value information given in previous years. The basis of preparation and reporting
within the primary financial statements and the actuarial assumptions within the
supplementary reporting, for prior periods, remains unchanged.

The implementation of the Achieved Profits guidance has not resulted in any change
to the underlying Embedded Value methodologies adopted by Old Mutual; therefore
the changes will be presentational only. The new format will include a summary
profit and loss account and balance sheet, which is consistent with the presentation
adopted in the primary financial statements.

The schedule below provides half-year comparative figures for 2002 and for the full
year 2001 under the Achieved Profits format in order to facilitate comparison when

the company announces its 2002 preliminary results on 24 February 2003:

Consolidated profit and loss account on an 6 months to 12 months to
Achieved Profits basis 30 Jun 2002 31 Dec 2001
£m £m
Operating profit before tax 477 1,048
Operating profit after tax and minority interests 281 545
Short term fluctuations in investment return (116) 91
Goodwill amortisation and impairment &29)] (620)
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings plc (22) (144)
Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after tax
and minority interests 92 (128)
Earnings per share:
— operating result 7.7p 154p
~ basic 2.5p (3.6)p
Consolidated balance sheet on an Achieved 6 months to 12 months to
Profits basis 30 Jun 2002 31 Dec 2001
£m ~ £m
Shareholders’ equity — primary financial
statements 2,684 2,470
Total long term in-force business asset 618 597
Shareholders’ equity — achieved profits basis 3,302 3,067
Pro forma adjustment to bring listed
subsidiaries to market value 473 455
Embedded value (as previously reported) 3,775 3,522
Embedded value per share 100p 94p



The Achieved Profits methodology measures the movement in the value of in-force
and the movement in the net assets of the life assurance businesses. Earnings under
the Achieved Profits methodology are recognised earlier in the life business, as the
change in the present value of the future profits of all policies written will now be
included in the result. In addition, an active investment return is applied to that
portion of shareholder capital that supports the statutory solvency requirement (i.e.
encumbered capital). This impacts operating earnings, with an offsetting adjustment
to short term fluctuations.

One of the key presentational changes is that the Achieved Profits earnings and, in
particular, the Achieved Profits value of new business, are presented on a gross of tax
basis. Previously the presentation was net of effective tax rates applicable to the
various geographical jurisdictions. Details of the tax rates used will be included in
assumptions.

From a balance sheet perspective, Achieved Profits reporting will include the total
long-term in-force business asset, representing the value in force, net of statutory
solvency adjustments. The market value adjustments for the group’s investment in
listed subsidiaries are excluded under Achieved Profits but this information will
continue to be disclosed within the supplementary information as in prior years.

Rand/sterling exchange rates used to translate the operating results, assets and
liabilities are presented below:

31 Dec 2002 30 Jun 2002 31 Dec 2001
P&L account 15.7878 15.8800 12.3923
(average rate)
Balance sheet 13.8141 15.8451 17.4286
(closing rate)

20 January 2003

Contact details:
Old Mutual ple
James Poole (UK) Tel: +44 20 7569 0100
Nad Pillay/Mike Willis (SA) Tel: +27 11 881 5783
College Hill
Tony Friend/Gareth David (UK) Tel: +44 20 7457 2020
Nicholas Williams/Robyn Hunt (SA) Tel: +27 11 447 3030

Notes to editors:

Old Mutual plc (“Old Mutual”) is a world-class international financial services
company, providing wealth accumulation and protection through its expanding
operations in life assurance, institutional and retail asset management, banking and
general insurance. Following demutualisation, Old Mutual listed on the London
Stock Exchange in July 1999, and also listed on the Johannesburg, Namibia, Malawi



and Zimbabwe stock exchanges. Old Mutual is a member of the FTSE 100 with a
market capitalisation of around £3.3 bn at 31 December 2002.

Old Mutual owns 53.2% of Nedcor, South Africa’s highest rated bank, and 51% of
the South African general insurance company, Mutual & Federal.



OLD MUTUAL PLC
Number of Shares in Issue

Old Mutual plc (“the Company™) announces that a total of 3,782,506,372 shares in the
Company were in issue at 31 December 2002. Changes since 30 June 2002 were
made as follows:

Number of shares in issue at 30 June 2002: 3,782,350,468

Shares issued during the period on exercise of 76,636
executive share options:

Shares issued during the period on exercise 79,268
of sharesave options:

Shares in issue at 31 December 2002; 3,782,506,372

The above figures for shares issued on exercise of options relate to shares issued
under the Company’s Share Option and Deferred Delivery Plan and Savings-Related
Share Option Scheme, together with shares in the Company issued on exercise of
rollover executive and sharesave options granted in connection with the acquisition of
Gerrard Group plc in 2000.

17 January 2003
Enquiries:
Old Mutual plc
Martin Murray, Group Company ‘ Tel: +44 (0)20 7569 0100

Secretary



OLD MUTUAL PLC

OMS sale completed

Further to the announcement made on 11 November 2002, Old Mutual plc (“Old
Mutual”) is pleased to announce the completion of the sale of Old Mutual Securities
Limited (“OMS”) to Secure Trust Banking Group plc ("Secure Trust").

As of today’s date, all conditions relating to the successful completion of the sale of

OMS have been fulfilled or waived.

ENQUIRIES:

Old Mutual, London
James Poole

Old Mutual Financial Services UK
Edmond Warner, Chief Executive

College Hill, London
Tony Friend

College Hill, South Africa
Nicholas Williams

15 January 2003

Tel: +44 20 7569 0121

Tel: +44 20 7002 4000

Tel: +44 20 7457 2020

Tel: +27 11 447 3030



